
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




Executive Director’s Report – June 2014 
 


My thanks to all the ADRIA Board members who so actively supported our recent Conference and AGM 


activities.  Congratulations to our new and returning Board members, and my sincere thanks to those 


who have stepped down from previously held positions.  Your dedication and service to ADRIA has 


served to transition, stabilize and transform the organization towards reaching its stated goals and full 


potential. 


 


Potential elements of this report that have been adequately addressed elsewhere in the Board’s agenda 


are, for the most part, not included herein. 


 


Dashboard displays will increasingly be incorporated into the Board presentation materials, and 


progressively linked to ADRIA’s strategic plan and performance metrics.  Dashboard metrics are 


intended to provide Board members with clear, succinct and meaningful data, charts and indicators 


upon which they may base their decisions, establish new initiatives, and provide strategic direction.  It is 


important that the Board provide regular feedback and suggestions regarding the metrics presented – 


what’s useful, what’s not, and what’s needed in the future. 


 


Membership Report  
Paul Conway, Executive Director 


Truus Souman, Executive & Membership Coordinator 


 


 Full Members Associate Members Total Members 


    


Current (Jun 2014) 341 143 484 


AGM (May 2014) 338 145 483 


End-2013 328 151 479 


End-2012 329 102 431 


ADRIA start (Sep 2012) 311 92 403 


2 years ago (AAMS) 354 113 467 


3 years ago (AAMS) 333 104 437 


    


Calgary & Southern AB 157 (46%) 57 (40%) 214 (44%) 


Central & Northern AB 174 (51%) 82 (57%) 256 (53%) 


Out-of-province 10 4 14 (3%) 


    


ADRIA High (Jun 2014) 341 143 484 


ADRIA Low (Jan 2013) 323 114 437 


5-year high (Apr 2010) 355 151 506 


5-year low (Sep 2012) 311 92 403 


    


 







 


Membership continues to grow slowly and steadily - hopefully an indication of renewed and justifiable 
confidence in the organization and its leadership.   Efforts to improve the member interface and front 
desk customer service have clearly paid off.  Corrections were finally made to our database 
management system, allowing us to distinguish between regions – revealing the North/South imbalance 
was not as great as anticipated.  Nonetheless, opportunities for membership growth in Calgary and 
Southern Alberta will be exploited in the second half of 2014, with specific strategies to be developed 
for this purpose – notably the targeting of non-member practitioners, legal firms, MRU graduates, 
potential and active learners.  The issue of dual payment requirements to ADRIA and ADRIC, reported as 
an irritant to our members in the April ED report, will be discussed face-to-face with ADRIC this month.  
Corporate membership marketing materials are still in development for a summer release 
 
  


  Professional Development & Education 
Tammy Borowiecki, Director Professional Development 


Tasha Innes, Education Assistant 


 


 The Professional Development and Education department is busy preparing for the launch of 


two new programs this July; ADRIA’s new Communication in ADR 40-hour course and ADRIC’s 


National Introductory Mediation Training 40-hour course. 


o Our intern Emily has been providing us with excellent editing services, taking the old 


Communications course material, re-organizing it based on our Instructors suggestions 


and providing us with a new, clean and professional manual and activity workbook. 


o We have 12 people already registered for our new Communications class and 5 for the 


Mediation course, and we have had a large number of phone calls and emails from 


people wanting to register for these programs in the fall. 


o We are starting to confirm dates with our Instructors for the core programs for the 


upcoming year. The final calendar will be posted on our website and registration for 


these classes will all be opened by early July. 


 From April to June we successfully ran six specialty courses in Edmonton and one in Calgary. 


These included: 


o Conflict Resolution in the Oil & Gas Sector (11 students) 


o Court & Community Mediation (Edmonton: 7 students, Calgary: 4 students) 


o Co-Mediation (4 students)  


o Mediation Case Development (8 students) 


o Language & Behaviour (8 students) 


o Restorative Practices (10 students) 







 Our core programs over the last couple of months have had very strong numbers, with 12 


students participating in our ADR 110 course, 22 students in Negotiation and 22 currently 


completing our Mediation course. 


 After extensive research, we have decided on a new database application that is cloud-based 


and secure to use as a replacement to our SharePoint system for Instructors & Coaches. This is 


the same app, Knack, that we are considering for our Directory and we believe it will function on 


a much higher level than SharePoint, allowing us to manage the hiring of our coaches much 


more efficiently. 


 Our private training is still going strong, with PTI’s one-day course being successfully delivered in 


May and a proposal to Daytona Group approved for training in December. We submitted the 


training materials to PHBIA last month and received great response from their project manager 


in charge of the contract.  


 The Marsh/Aon insurance issue for our Instructors and Coaches has been successfully resolved, 


and will be discussed with ADRIC next week in Toronto. 


 There is still a considerable amount of legacy work left on the ADRIC mediation and arbitration 


courses as we try to finalize the editing, logistics and other bits and pieces. 


 The organization of the conference took a significant amount of time away from our education 


projects but we are happy to say it was a huge success. The learning from the conference and 


pre-conference was well received as shown by the mostly positive feedback from the survey we 


sent to attending members. 


 Overall we are trying to put in place procedures and policies to streamline much of the 


educational workload. This has proven to be an exciting but challenging task.  


 


 


Designations – March applications 
 


 


C.Arb Q.Arb C.Med Q.Med Total 


2 13 2 15 32 


                                                                                                                                           


 


As previously reported, there has been great interest expressed in the new ADRIC National Mediation 


course to be launched this summer and, although the Q.Med has more rigorous criteria for approval 


compared to the Q.Arb, a similar boost to Full membership applications and upgrades is anticipated in 


September.  The numbers reported above have not changed, although two(2) Q.Arb applications have 


not been advanced due to course failures, and one(1) Q.Med application was denied by the ADRIC 


Designation Committee. 


 


 


 


 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


In support of detailed submissions from the Treasurer, Accountant and Auditor, ADRIA continues to 


improve its financial situation as we move into the second half of 2014.  ADRIA traditionally gains new 


members and education revenues over the summer months as new learners enroll for Fall training.  


Designation applications in September will generate further membership upgrades and application fees.  


Expenses have been tightly controlled during the recent transition of ED, and staff resources have been 


kept focussed on key activities.  HR expenses will remain unchanged for the next few months as we 


monitor legacy expenses and the organization’s capacity to exploit new revenue streams.   


 


The attached bar graphs (presented in April as pie charts), illustrate the 2014 budget as currently 


approved, but in a new light.  ADRIA’s previously reported “Operational Expenses” are now fully 


distributed and properly attributed to the organization’s key functional activities.  Also attached is an 


updated Professional Development dashboard chart for 2014, providing Board Directors with a more 


complete understanding of these activities and their connection to membership revenue. 


 


Less than $5000 remains owing in our loan from AAMS, and ADRIA will be fully paid out by December 


2014.  Banking and credit cards have been transferred to the new ED and Board Executive since the 


AGM.  Further changes in ADRIA banking procedures will be initiated over the summer in accordance 


with Board direction issued in April.  A 2014 (in-year) budget review will be presented in September, and 


the 2015 (out-year) budget projections will also be initiated over the summer months (vice December). 


 


Accounts Payable (unpaid bills): 


 


-5000


0


5000


10000


15000


20000


25000


30000


35000


Se
p


-1
2


O
ct


-1
2


N
o


v-
1


2


D
e


c-
1


2


Ja
n


-1
3


Fe
b


-1
3


M
ar


-1
3


A
p


r-
1


3


M
ay


-1
3


Ju
n


-1
3


Ju
l-


1
3


A
u


g-
1


3


Se
p


-1
3


O
ct


-1
3


N
o


v-
1


3


D
e


c-
1


3


Ja
n


-1
4


Fe
b


-1
4


M
ar


-1
4


A
p


r-
1


4


M
ay


-1
4


Ju
n


-1
4


 


 


 


Financial 
footnotes 







Cash+Reserves: 


 
 


Cash+Reserves vs Deferred Revenue (ideally positive) 


 


 


Total Member Equity


 


0


20000


40000


60000


80000


100000


120000


-60000


-40000


-20000


0


20000


40000


60000


80000


-30000


-20000


-10000


0


10000


20000


30000


40000


50000


60000


70000


Se
p


-1
2


O
ct


-1
2


N
o


v-
1


2


D
e


c-
1


2


Ja
n


-1
3


Fe
b


-1
3


M
ar


-1
3


A
p


r-
1


3


M
ay


-1
3


Ju
n


-1
3


Ju
l-


1
3


A
u


g-
1


3


Se
p


-1
3


O
ct


-1
3


N
o


v-
1


3


D
e


c-
1


3


Ja
n


-1
4


Fe
b


-1
4


M
ar


-1
4


A
p


r-
1


4


M
ay


-1
4


 







Human Resources  


 


The ADRIA office team remains motivated and engaged in the business of providing quality membership 


services – membership administration, designations, education and professional development.  For the 


next few months, HR expenditures will remain closely managed, as we deliver on our existing/legacy 


commitments, continue to transform our education deliverables, and develop new revenue streams.  


 


Recent changes include: 


 A more full-time presence for the Executive Director (Paul, part-time, 4 days/week) 


 Continuing efforts to determine our ED transition costs 


 Stable membership & education services (incl a requirement to explore employee status) 


 Back-up capabilities within the staff enhanced 


 Support capacity to Board, Committees and Task Forces enhanced 


 Portable communications allowance introduced to enhance staff mobility and reduce costs 


 Stable travel and mileage allowances for staff, instructors and coaches. 


 Continued CAMVAP Provincial Administrator (Brenda, full-time, employee status) 


 Retitled Director Professional Development (Tammy, part-time, 3.5 days/week) 


 Retitled Education Assistant (Tasha, up to 5 days/week as required) 


 Retitled Executive & Membership Coordinator (Truus, part-time, 4 days/week) 


 NEW Manager Communications & Marketing (part-time, 3 days/week, as soon as practical) 


 
Directory of Arbitrators, Mediators and ADR Professionals


 
 


Initial estimates provided by two service providers were higher than anticipated.  While there is no 


doubt that this initiative will require an initial investment in order to achieve a long-term revenue 


stream for ADRIA, it is clear that an off-the-shelf product might offer better value.  The Board can expect 


firm details regarding the Directory by the time they meet again in September.   


 







 


AGM & Conference                  22/23 May 2014 
 


We made a profit! 
 


 
 


 


Overall conference numbers were low, but we had a larger-than-expected pre-conference registration 


which boosted revenues and AGM attendance.   AGM & Conference feedback was generally very 


positive but, of course, only reflected the views of those who attended.  Similarly the AGM offered an 


opportunity to summarize the year for those in attendance, and to recognize a number of deserving 


individuals.  Greater exposure in this regard will be achieved through the next Newsletter.  The Public 


Forum was a great concept, and should be considered in the future to attract non-member, corporate, 


government and media attention.  In Red Deer the non-member turnout was low, for a variety of 


reasons, but the Networking opportunity was well received.  Overall, as detailed in the Professional 


development & Education report, the topics and speakers provided quality professional development 


opportunities for our membership.  The support of our Sponsors was critical to last month’s success, 


providing $11,000 in funding and needed delegates.   


 


Discussions will resume next week with ADRIC regarding the 2015 and 2016 National Conferences, and 


the potential for western destinations.  It is NOT recommended that ADRIA host a regional conference in 


the same year as an Alberta ADRIC conference.  ADRIA is obligated to conduct an AGM in the first half of 


the calendar year (Jan-Jun), and regardless of our future conference plans, it is strongly recommended 


that next year’s AGM feature video and/or teleconferencing capabilities, and remote gathering sites in 


our major urban centres.   More participation builds a stronger professional association, and “bridges 


the distance” for those not able to attend in person.   


 


Conference planning for 2015 has already begun, with an initial search for collaborative partners and 


consultations with ADRIC next week. 


 


 


 



http://www.reddeerringette.com/sites/3333/page.asp?Site=9990&ID=14466&LeagueID=9990





CAMVAP 
 


 
 


The Canadian Motor Vehicle Arbitration Plan (CAMVAP) program continues to generate credibilty and 


revenue for ADRIA.  A new two-year contract, increased by 3+2% annually, has been offered to ADRIA. 


 


Outreach 


 
 


There has been a lot of positive feedback to ADRIA’s outreach efforts, reinforcing the premise that an 


organization needs to be present in order to be relevant.  Demonstrated leadership in advancing ADR 


issues within the province will attract membership and business opportunities.   While not an exhaustive 


list, ADRIA has participated and/or demonstrated leadership in the following forums in 2014: 


 


ADR Institute of Canada (ADRIC) 


Mediator Advocacy (an ADRIA Task Force) 


Alberta Arbitration & Mediation Society (AAMS) 


Alberta Courts Mediation Program Review 


Dispute Resolution Network (DRN) 


Conflict Resolution Day Planning Committee 


Municipal Dispute Resolution Services (Advisory Group) 


Mediation Inter-Agency Network (MIAN, Edmonton) 


Provincial Family Justice Reform Initiative 


Mediation & Restorative Justice Centre (MRJC) 


Peer Mediation and Skills Training (PMAST, Calgary and Saskatoon)  


Alberta Restorative Justice Association (ARJA) 


Foundation of Administrative Justice (FOAJ) 


Alberta Conflict Transformation Society (ACTS, Edmonton – now defunct) 


Catholic Social Services (Edmonton) 


Alberta Dispute Resolution Centre 








c e c e c e c e c e c e c e c e c e c e c e c e c e


ADR 110 6 24 11 6 35


COMMUNICATION 5 11 12 5 23


NEGOTIATION 6 8 8 8 14


MEDIATION 15 6 11 11 5 17 31


SPECIALTY 3 4 37 10 4 50


ARBITRATION 6 7 6 7


September October November December Total


2014 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT REPORT


Courses
January February March April May June July August


ARBITRATION 6 7 6 7


TOTAL REGISTRATIONS 6 39 17 18 0 9 12 45 11 22 0 10 0 17 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 46 160


PRIVATE CONTRACTS $11,750 $25,750$0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0$0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000


0


50


100


150


200


6
30


4 6


46


107


35
68


50


7


160
193


2014 COURSE REGISTRATIONS


0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800
900


6


180


4 30


220 161
35


408


137
35


615


896


2014 STUDENT DAYS


$0


$20,000


$40,000


$60,000


$80,000


$100,000


$4,000 $0


$21,750 $25,750


$97,110


2014 PRIVATE CONTRACT 
REVENUE


Calgary Edmonton Calgary Edmonton


$0





		2014






 


C0197770.v1 


6.3 


TREASURER’S REPORT 


 Effective as of the end of February 2014 (March financial statements not yet available) 


 Attachments 


o Balance Sheet May 31 2014 


o Budget v. Actual Summary May 2014 


o Pie Chart Actual Revenues v. Expenses May 2014 


o Pie Chart budget Revenues v. Expenses May 2014 


 All financial documents are available to board members who want copies of them. 


GENERAL COMMENTS  


 No changes have been made to the current methodologies to make payments and do cheque 


runs etc.   I have been speaking with Paul about this and I understand that it is anticipated that 


the new procedures will be in place before the next meeting. 


 The statements are five months into the new budget so any trends or changes based on more 


recent developments will have to be addressed by the ED. 


 Note that at the moment both the income and the expenses are under budget.  The summary 


sheet shows that we have a net profit of approximately $42K despite the revenues being 


somewhat lower than anticipated.  Note as well that we expect the largest bump in membership 


revenue towards the end of the year as people renew memberships in the same fashion as that 


occurred last year. 


FINANCIAL COMMENTS 


 My preference is not to go through all of the financial statements in any great detail as I suspect 


that it will bog down the process. 


 Cash reserves are strong at in excess of $80K 


 Deferred revenue is less than member’s equity at the moment which is a good thing. 


 The AAMS loan is down to just under $6,000 remaining. 


 The Budget and Actual pie charts best show how we are tracking.   


o The biggest difference in the pie charts is the operations expense is higher than 


budgeted.  This is counteracted to some extent by the  professional development 


aspects of the expenses being somewhat lower  


 The previous general comment that our budget is fairly “thin” remains  valid.  We are able to get 


by but we need to be mindful of expenses with a view to keeping the overall budget intact. 


PLAN FOR NEXT YEAR 







 


C0197770.v1 


 We have been somewhat reactive in terms of addressing budgetary matters thus far at least as 


long as I have been on the board. 


 I have been discussing with Paul the potential to put the financial reporting in a slightly different 


fashion for the future. 


 We have been struggling  with priorities on education and membership given that both remain 


important parts of our organization.  I’d like to see the breakdown of revenues and expenses 


associated with each aspect of the organization so we can track trends and growth in each.  This 


puts us in apposition where we can track and judge the impact of trends on each of them on a 


go forward basis. 


 Ideally, we would have these items budgeted for in such a fashion that it is easy to determine 


what the revenue/expense split is for each of these in an easy to read format.  This will likely 


mean revisiting certain allocations and how items are described on the budget.  My hope is  that 


when we report to the membership at the AGM (not the next one but the one after that as we 


can’t really change our reporting mid-stream in Q 2 of 2014) we can give a more easily digestible 


breakdown of membership  v. education aspects of the Association. 








ADR Institute of Alberta


Financial Statements


December 31, 2013







ADR Institute of Alberta


Index to Financial Statements


Year Ended December 31, 2013


Page


MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING


 
1


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 2 - 3


FINANCIAL STATEMENTS      


Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 4


Expenses (Schedule 1) 5


Statement of Changes in Net Assets 6


Statement of Financial Position 7


Statement of Cash Flows 8


Notes to Financial Statements 9 - 14







    


Management's Responsibility for Financial Reporting


The accompanying financial statements of the ADR Institute of Alberta  and all the information in this
annual report are the responsibility of management and have been approved by the Board of Directors on
behalf of the ADR Institute of Alberta .


The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian accounting
standards for not-for-profit organizations.  Financial statements are not precise since they include certain
amounts based on estimates and judgments.  When alternative accounting methods exist, management
has chosen those it deems most appropriate in the circumstances, in order to ensure that the financial
statements are presented fairly, in all material respects.


ADR Institute of Alberta  maintains systems of internal accounting and administrative controls of high
quality consistent with reasonable cost.  Such systems are designed to provide reasonable assurance
that the financial information is relevant, reliable and accurate, and the Society's assets are appropriately
accounted for and adequately safeguarded.


ADR Institute of Alberta  is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for
financial reporting and is ultimately responsible for reviewing and approving the financial statements.
ADR Institute of Alberta  carries out this responsibility principally through its Executive Director.


The Board of Directors review the ADR Institute of Alberta 's financial statements and recommends their
approval. The Executive Director may, if deemed necessary, periodically with the external auditor to
discuss internal controls over the financial reporting process, auditing matters and financial reporting
issues, to satisfy themselves that each party is properly discharging their responsibilities, and to review
the annual report, the financial statements and the external auditor's report. The Board of Directors of the
ADR Institute of Alberta  then approve the financial statements for issuance to the Members.  The Board
of Directors also consider, for review and approval by the Members, the engagement of the external
auditor.


The financial statements have been audited by the firm Colin Presizniuk & Associates  in accordance with
Canadian Auditing Standards on behalf of the Members.


President Treasurer


Edmonton, AB
June 16, 2014


 


- 1 -







Colin Presizniuk & Associates*


Professional Accountants


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT


To the Members of ADR Institute of Alberta 


We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ADR Institute of Alberta, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2013 and the statements of revenues and
expenditures, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.


Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from  material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.


Auditor's Responsibility


Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian Auditing Standards.  Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.


An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.


We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion. 


(continues)
 


General inquiries: info@hocpa.ca
Phone: 780.448.7317
Fax: 780.456.8223


107, White Oaks Square
12222 - 137 Avenue


Edmonton, AB T5L 4X5


www.hocpa.ca - 2 - *denotes a partnership of professional corporations







Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of ADR Institute of Alberta  (continued)


Opinion 


In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
ADR Institute of Alberta as at December 31, 2013 and the results of its operations and  its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.


Edmonton , Alberta Colin Presizniuk & Associates 
June 16, 2014  CERTIFIED GENERAL ACCOUNTANTS


 


- 3 -







ADR Institute of Alberta


Statement of Revenues and Expenditures


Year Ended December 31, 2013


Operating Reserve
Fund Fund 2013 2012


(4 months)


REVENUES
Program fees (Note 4) $ 489,329 $ - $ 489,329 $ 104,200
Membership fees (Note 5) 123,086 - 123,086 46,422
CAMVAP contract 57,760 - 57,760 17,011
Exclusive license agreements


 (Note 6) 32,580 - 32,580 6,300
AGM and Conference 26,865 - 26,865 -
Course design consulting fees


 (Note 7) 25,750 - 25,750 35,750
Directory 13,850 - 13,850 -
AAMS Service contract 7,000 - 7,000 38,000


 Room rental income 1,815 - 1,815 30
Roster administration 1,200 - 1,200 1,000
Interest income 11 - 11 -


779,246 - 779,246 248,713


EXPENSES (Schedule 1) 734,818 - 734,818 277,778


EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER
EXPENSES $ 44,428 $ - $ 44,428 $ (29,065)


 
See notes to financial statements


- 4 -







ADR Institute of Alberta


Expenses (Schedule 1)


Year Ended December 31, 2013


Operating Reserve
Fund Fund 2013 2012


(4 months)


Education programs delivery $ 310,150 $ - $ 310,150 $ 146,129
Other contract services 114,749 - 114,749 5,700
CAMVAP contract delivery


 (Note 8) 48,132 - 48,132 16,715
Member service delivery (Note 9) 41,884 - 41,884 34,514
ADRI dues 27,625 - 27,625 10,080
Rent 27,205 - 27,205 8,828
AGM and conference 25,186 - 25,186 -
Accounting services 22,145 - 22,145 10,348
Employer expense 19,910 - 19,910 6,150
Interest and credit card charges 15,282 - 15,282 6,058
Board expense and insurance 12,202 - 12,202 3,310
Moving expenses 8,434 - 8,434 480
Professional fees 8,000 - 8,000 6,327
Advertising and promotion 7,916 - 7,916 2,019
Amortization 6,393 - 6,393 3,318
Office and administrative 6,290 - 6,290 2,542
Directory expense 6,248 - 6,248 -
Website development 4,703 - 4,703 2,659
Equipment repairs and


maintenance 4,614 - 4,614 4,224
Equipment rental 4,346 - 4,346 1,054
Telephone 3,537 - 3,537 1,449
Insurance 3,423 - 3,423 1,119
Conference and meeting 2,461 - 2,461 3,842
Postage and courier 1,691 - 1,691 361
Printing 1,405 - 1,405 -
Storage rental 641 - 641 400
Interest on short term loan


 (Note 14) 246 - 246 152


$ 734,818 $ - $ 734,818 $ 277,778


 
See notes to financial statements


- 5 -







ADR Institute of Alberta


Statement of Changes in Net Assets


Year Ended December 31, 2013


Operating Reserve
Fund Fund 2013 2012


(4 months)


 


NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF
YEAR $ (29,065) $ - $ (29,065) $ -


 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues


over expenses 44,428 - 44,428 (29,065)
  


NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR
  


$ 15,363
  


$ -
  


$ 15,363
  


$ (29,065)


 
See notes to financial statements


- 6 -







ADR Institute of Alberta


Statement of Financial Position


December 31, 2013


Operating Reserve
Fund Fund 2013 2012


(4 months)


ASSETS


CURRENT
Cash in bank (Note 10) $ 34,048 $ - $ 34,048 $ 24,450
Investments (Note 11) 6,011 - 6,011 6,000
Accounts receivable 14,940 - 14,940 41,465
Prepaid expenses


 (Note 12) 11,481 - 11,481 11,441


66,480 - 66,480 83,356


TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
 (Note 13) 19,832 - 19,832 21,820


$ 86,312 $ - $ 86,312 $ 105,176


LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS


CURRENT
Accounts payable and


accrued liabilities $ 23,610 $ - $ 23,610 $ 17,515
Due to ADRI - - - 5,110
Goods and service tax


payable 3,244 - 3,244 6,964
Loans payable (Note 14) 10,075 - 10,075 30,000
Loan interest payable - - - 152
Deferred revenue (Note 15) 34,020 - 34,020 74,500


70,949 - 70,949 134,241


NET ASSETS
Unrestricted operating fund 15,363 - 15,363 (29,065)


$ 86,312 $ - $ 86,312 $ 105,176


COMMITMENTS (Note 16)   


ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD


_____________________________ Director


_____________________________ Director
 
See notes to financial statements


- 7 -







ADR Institute of Alberta


Statement of Cash Flows


Year Ended December 31, 2013


2013 2012


OPERATING ACTIVITIES
 Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses $ 44,428 $ (29,065)
 Items not affecting cash:


 Amortization 6,393 3,318


 50,821 (25,747)


 Changes in non-cash working capital: 
 Accounts receivable 26,525 (41,465)
 Prepaid expenses (40) (11,441)
 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 6,096 29,588
 Due to ADRI (5,110) -
 Goods and service tax payable (3,720) -
 Loan interest payable (152) 152
 Deferred revenue (40,480) 74,500


(16,881) 51,334


 Cash flow from operating activities 33,940 25,587


INVESTING ACTIVITY
 Purchase of capital assets (4,405) (25,137)


 Cash flow used by investing activity (4,405) (25,137)


FINANCING ACTIVITY
 - -
 Loans payable (19,926) 30,000


 Cash flow from (used by) financing activity (19,926) 30,000


INCREASE IN CASH FLOW 9,609 30,450


Cash - beginning of year 30,450 -


CASH - END OF YEAR $ 40,059 $ 30,450


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CONSISTS OF:
 Cash in bank (Note 10) $ 34,048 $ 24,450
 Investments (Note 11) 6,011 6,000


$ 40,059 $ 30,450


 
See notes to financial statements


- 8 -







ADR Institute of Alberta


Notes to Financial Statements


Year Ended December 31, 2013


1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS    


ADR Institute of Alberta (the "Society") is a non-profit organization incorporated under the Societies
Act of Alberta on May 24, 2012. The Society is dedicated to the promotion of alternative dispute
solutions and provides leadership in conflict resolution in the areas of Negotiation, Mediation, and
Arbitration and addressing harm through processes like Restorative Justice. 


The Society is a tax-exempt organization for income tax purposes and has therefore made no
provision for income taxes in these financial statements.


2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES         


Basis of presentation 


The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations  (ASNPO).


Capital assets       


Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided annually
at the following rates and methods over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows, except in
the year of acquisition when one-half of the rate is used:


 
Furniture and equipment 20% declining balance method
Computer equipment 30% declining balance method


Cash and cash equivalents 


The Society is to present bank balances and term deposits with a maturity period of three months or
less from the date of acquisition under cash and cash equivalents.


Contributed services 


Volunteer services contributed on behalf of the Society in carrying out its operating activities are not
recognized in these financial statements due to the difficulty of determining their fair value.


Financial instruments   


Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued. In subsequent periods,
financial assets with actively traded markets are reported at fair value, with any unrealized gains and
losses reported in income. All other financial instruments are reported at amortized cost, and tested
for impairment at each reporting date. Transaction costs on the acquisition, sale, or issue of financial
instruments are expensed when incurred.


(continues)


 


- 9 -







ADR Institute of Alberta


Notes to Financial Statements


Year Ended December 31, 2013


2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)


Fund accounting 


The Society follows the restricted fund method of accounting for contributions. 


The Operating Fund accounts for the Society’s operating and administrative activities.  


The Reserve Fund accounts for special projects and activities that will be of benefit to the
membership of the Society.


Revenue recognition 


Restricted contributions relating to general operations are recognized as revenue of the Operating
Fund in the year in which the related expenses are incurred. All other restricted contributions are
recognized as revenue of the appropriate restricted fund.


Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the Operating Fund in the year received or
receivable if the amount if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is
reasonably assured.  Unrestricted investment income is recognized as revenue when earned.


Program fees are recognized in the year in which the programs are performed.


Membership fees are recognized in the year for which the membership applies.


Statement of cash flows 


The Society uses the indirect method in preparing the statement of cash flows.


Use of estimates 


When preparing financial statements according to ASNPO, we are required to make estimates and
assumptions relating to:


 reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the year;


 reported amounts of assets and liabilities; and


 disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the report date.


We base our assumptions on a number of factors, including historical experience, current events
and actions that the Society may undertake in the future, and other assumptions believed
reasonable under the circumstances. We periodically review these estimates and, accordingly,
adjustments made to these estimates are taken into income in the year in which it is determined.
These estimates are subject to measurement uncertainty, and actual results may therefore differ
from those estimates.


 


- 10 -







ADR Institute of Alberta


Notes to Financial Statements


Year Ended December 31, 2013


3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS      


The Society’s financial instruments consist of cash, term deposits, accounts receivable, and
accounts payable and accrued liabilities. Unless otherwise indicated, it is management’s opinion that
the Society is not exposed to significant interest or credit risks arising from these financial
statements.  The fair values of these financial instruments approximate their carrying values, unless
otherwise noted.


Credit risk


The Society's exposure to credit risk is principally derived from cash in bank, investments, accounts
receivable. Cash and investments are deposited with chartered banks to limit the credit risk
exposure. Accounts receivable are due from customers who obtained educational programs and
membership dues as at the year ended and are not considered to be significant. As a result, it is
management's opinion that the organization is not exposed to significant credit risks. 


Fair value


The fair value of these financial instruments approximate their carrying value due to the immediate
or short term maturity of these financial instruments.


Currency risk


The Society does not have any significant currency risk.


Interest rate risk


It is management’s opinion that the Society is not exposed to significant interest rate risk.


4. PROGRAM FEES            


Program fees consist of the following:


2013 2012


Certificate programs $ 373,182 $ 94,853
Groups 101,002 1,212
Application fee 10,375 -
Assessments 4,375 2,550
Equivalency 395 -
Instructor contracts - 5,585


$ 489,329 $ 104,200


 


- 11 -







ADR Institute of Alberta


Notes to Financial Statements


Year Ended December 31, 2013


5. MEMBERSHIP FEES           


Membership fees consist of the following:


2013 2012


Full member $ 88,215 $ 34,045
Associate member 18,940 7,750
Administration fee 7,750 3,150
National Rules administration 4,441 -
Corporate member 3,090 -
Affiliate 650 -
Designation application fee - 1,477


$ 123,086 $ 46,422


6. EXCLUSIVE LICENSE AGREEMENTS              


Exclusive license agreements consist of the following:


2013 2012


Alberta Arbitration and Mediation Society $ 13,800 $ -
Specialty Course 13,500 -
MTI Materials 5,280 6,300


$ 32,580 $ 6,300


7. COURSE DESIGN CONSULTING FEES           


Course design consulting fees consist of the following:


2013 2012


Professional Home Builders Institute of Alberta $ 15,750 $ 15,750
ADR Institute of Canada Inc. 10,000 20,000


$ 25,750 $ 35,750


8. CAMVAP CONTRACT DELIVERY            


CAMVAP contract delivery consists of the following:


2013 2012


Wages and benefits $ 48,132 $ 16,715


 


- 12 -







ADR Institute of Alberta


Notes to Financial Statements


Year Ended December 31, 2013


9. MEMBER SERVICE DELIVERY          


Member service delivery consists of the following:


2013 2012


Wages and benefits $ 41,809 $ 34,514


10. CASH IN BANK    


The Society's cash is held in an account at a chartered bank.


11. INVESTMENTS          


Investments consist of the following:


2013 2012


TD Bank Guaranteed Investment Certificate; interest at
0.8%; matures on December 6, 2013 $ - $ 6,000


TD Savings account 6,011 -


$ 6,011 $ 6,000


12. PREPAID EXPENSES           


Prepaid expenses consist of the following:


2013 2012


Insurance - Commercial, Board and Directors $ 4,729 $ 4,689
Rent deposit - North Calgary Business Centre 3,300 3,300
                    - Keywest Capital Corp. 3,452 3,452


$ 11,481 $ 11,441


13. CAPITAL ASSETS           
2013 2012


Cost Accumulated Net book Net book
amortization value value


Furniture and equipment $ 9,038 $ 2,530 $ 6,508 $ 8,135
Computer equipment 20,505 7,181 13,324 13,685


$ 29,543 $ 9,711 $ 19,832 $ 21,820


 


- 13 -







ADR Institute of Alberta


Notes to Financial Statements


Year Ended December 31, 2013


14. LOANS PAYABLE    


An agreement was signed on July 1, 2012, due to the Alberta Arbitration and Mediation Society
(AAMS). Interest is at 1.5% repayable on or before December 31, 2014. The term of the loan was
extended from December 31, 2013 to December 31, 2014 as agreed between ADRIA and AAMS.


15. DEFERRED REVENUE           


Deferred revenue and fees received in advance consist of the following:


2013 2012


Memberships $ - $ 2,675
Education programs deliverable 30,395 57,950
CAMVAP contract revenue 3,625 3,625
Directory - 10,250


$ 34,020 $ 74,500


16. COMMITMENTS   


During the year the Society entered into a rental facility agreement with the Concordia University
College of Alberta. The term of the agreement became effective on June 1, 2013 and will continue
until May 31, 2016. For the use of space and access to services, the Society will pay Concordia a
rental fee of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) per year plus applicable taxes.


During the year, the Society entered into an equipment lease agreement with National Leasing for a
telephone system. The term of the lease commenced on October 1, 2013 for a period of 40 months.
The monthly lease payment is $152.56 plus GST. 


17. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT    


The Society's primary objective to managing capital is to ensure that necessary funding is in place to
undertake its mission. The Society manages capital through an annual budgeting process and
continuous monitoring of revenues and expenditures against the budget.


18. INCOME TAXES    


The Society is a not-for-profit organization incorporated under the Societies Act. It is exempt from tax
under Section 149(1)(l).


 


- 14 -








ADR Institute of Alberta
BALANCE SHEET


May 31, 2014


June 10, 2014 10:09PM 1 Report 1


ASSETS


CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 12,271 $
Reserve Funds 80,711 
Accounts Receivable 15,764 
Prepaid Expenses 6,925 


Total Current Assets 115,671 $


PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Office Furniture & Fixtures 4,858 $
Computer Equipment 14,026 
Telephone Equipment 4,204 
Classroom Furniture & Equipment 2,331 


Total Property and Equipment 25,419 $


OTHER ASSETS


Total Other Assets 0 $


TOTAL ASSETS 141,090 $


LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY


CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 0 $
Accrued Liabilities 20,750 
Deferred Revenue 48,170 
GST/HST Payable 1,145 
Loan from AAMS 5,895 
Due to ADRI 4,558 


Total Current Liabilities 80,518 $


LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Lease Payable - Telephone 3,146 $


Total Long Term Liabilities 3,146 $


TOTAL LIABILITIES 83,664 $


MEMBERS' EQUITY
General Surplus 15,317 $
Net Income (Loss) 42,109 


Total Members' Equity 57,426 


TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY 141,090 $








 ADR Institute of Alberta


 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 January through May 2014


Jan - May Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget


Income


Membership Fees Net of ADRIC 47,726 56,920 -9,194 84%


Other Membership Services 38,050 48,365 -10,315 79%


Professional Development 227,561 268,120 -40,559 85%


Designation 6,875 4,950 1,925 139%


Accreditation 100 0 100 100%


Other Income 30 125 -95 24%


Total Income 320,342 378,480 -58,138 85%


Expense


Member Services 4,699 17,750 -13,051 26%


Professional Development 129,381 191,010 -61,629 68%


Designation 500 800 -300 63%


Operations 138,299 146,804 -8,505 94%


Board of Directors 5,353 3,531 1,822 152%


Total Income 278,232 359,895 -81,663 77%


Net Income 42,110 18,585 23,525 227%


 Page 1 of 1








 


1828 L Street, NW • Suite 900 • Washington, DC 20036-5114 • 202-452-6262 • Fax 202-452-6299 • www.boardsource.org 


 
 
 
 
 


EXECUTIVE SESSIONS: 
HOW TO USE THEM 


REGULARLY AND WISELY 
 
 
 
 
 


What are executive sessions? ............................................................... 1 
Why are executive sessions needed? .................................................... 1 
Who participates in executive sessions?............................................... 3 
What is appropriate to discuss during executive sessions? .................. 3 
What are the legal boundaries around executive sessions?.................. 7 
How should executive sessions be handled? ........................................ 8 
How can we avoid misusing executive sessions? .............................. 10 


 
 
 
 
 
BoardSource wishes to thank Gregg Behr, The Grable Foundation; Marc L. Fleischaker, Arent 
Fox; and Frederick T. Miller, The Chatham Group, Inc., for sharing their professional insights 
and expertise on this document. 
 
Information and guidance provided in this document is provided with the understanding that 
BoardSource is not engaged in rendering professional or legal opinions. If such opinions are 
required, the services of an attorney should be sought. 







Executive Sessions: How to Use Them Regularly and Wisely 


www.boardsource © BoardSource 2007  1


WHAT ARE EXECUTIVE SESSIONS? 
 
Nonprofit board meetings are convened for the board to transact business and address important 
organizational issues with the chief executive and, often, senior staff. While many nonprofit 
boards choose to conduct their meetings in private, some organizations are required to operate in 
the public arena.1 For all boards, however, specific instances warrant that some portion of the 
meeting be conducted in executive session. 
 
An executive session — sometimes called a closed meeting or an in camera session — is a 
useful tool for protecting and advancing the best interests of an organization. Executive sessions 
provide a venue for handling issues that are best discussed in private, for fostering robust 
discourse, and for strengthening trust and communication. Distinguished by their purpose and 
participants, executive sessions serve three core functions: (1) they assure confidentiality, (2) 
they create a mechanism for board independence and oversight, and (3) they enhance 
relationships among board members and with the chief executive. 
 
By the board and for the board, executive sessions enable the board to manage itself. They create 
an appropriate forum for board members to talk openly about topics that warrant special 
treatment. In effect, executive sessions are a kind of special meeting-within-a-meeting. Executive 
sessions may take place before, in the middle, or at the end of a regular board meeting. They are, 
by definition, exclusive to board members, but others, such as the chief executive or professional 
advisors, may be invited to join for part or all of the session. 
 
The notion of a private conversation for board members may seem contrary to the ethos of 
transparency expected of nonprofit organizations and to the development of a constructive 
partnership between the chief executive and the board. However, executive sessions are an 
effective mechanism for boards of all organizations to deal with certain kinds of issues, provided 
that they are called for the right reasons and handled appropriately. This BoardSource white 
paper offers guidance on who, what, when, why, and how to use executive sessions. 
 
WHY ARE EXECUTIVE SESSIONS NEEDED? 
 
According to the Nonprofit Governance Index 20072, 74 
percent of chief executives surveyed report that their 
boards met in executive session within the last 12 months, 
and nonprofits with annual budgets of $5 million or more 
are more likely to use executive sessions. The most 
common reasons for these sessions include executive 
performance and/or compensation review, personnel issues, 
and peer-to-peer board discussions. While the rationale for 
an executive session varies depending on the organization’s 
                                                 
1 Some nonprofit organizations are subject to sunshine, or open meeting, laws that define when and how executive 
sessions can be used. For more information, see page 8. 
2 In June 2007, BoardSource conducted a national survey of nonprofit governance practices. Responses from 1,126 
chief executives and 1,026 board members are presented in the Nonprofit Governance Index 2007, available online 
at http://www.boardsource.org/governance. 


AN EXECUTIVE SESSION AT EVERY MEETING 


“It is done at each meeting to provide an 
opportunity for the executive and board to 
discuss issues and concerns without staff. 
The board meets first with the CEO and 
then without CEO at each meeting. The 
meeting without CEO provides a peer-to-
peer discussion opportunity.” 


~ Chief Executive 
(BoardSource Nonprofit 
Governance Index 2007) 







Executive Sessions: How to Use Them Regularly and Wisely 


www.boardsource © BoardSource 2007  2


culture and circumstances, certain issues require more candid, confidential conversations and, 
consequently, a more limited audience (See the exhibit below). 
 
First, the board needs time alone to strengthen relationships and communication among board 
members and with the chief executive. For example, board members may be reluctant to 
challenge the chief executive in front of staff for fear of undermining his or her authority. In 
other instances, board members may wish to discuss sensitive topics like succession planning, 
senior staff performance, or executive compensation. Likewise, the chief executive may want to 
discuss future retirement plans without causing consternation among staff. 
 
Second, board members need an opportunity to get to know and trust each other, personally and 
collectively. They need to be able to speak freely to air concerns and explore all aspects of 
issues. Executive sessions afford the board an opportunity to raise warning flags, discuss time-
sensitive opportunities that can’t yet be made public, and allow the board to explore different 
courses of action. Some issues involve the board itself, such as board performance or individual 
member participation. Other issues might warrant further board discussion with the chief 
executive, such as negative community reaction to a recent decision. 
 
Third, as a governing body, the board needs to demonstrate and exercise its independence from 
the chief executive. For example, a nonprofit board serves as a check-and-balance when 
accepting the financial audit and determining chief executive compensation. These oversight 
activities require the board to make decisions that are not controlled by the chief executive. 
 


EXHIBIT: BASIC GUIDELINES FOR EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 
 Board With Chief Executive Board Alone 


Rationale 


• To maintain confidentiality required by 
law and further the organization’s 
interests 


• To discuss highly sensitive business 
issues in private 


• To foster a more constructive 
partnership between the board and chief 
executive 


• To build capacity for robust discussion 


• To create a forum that is not unduly 
influenced by the chief executive 


• To encourage more open 
communication among the board 


• To discuss issues related to the way the 
board operates 


• To address issues related to the chief 
executive  


• To build capacity for robust discussion 


Topics 


• Legal issues 
• Major strategic and business issues 
• Crisis management 
• Roles, responsibilities, and expectations 


of the board and chief executive 


• Audit 
• Chief executive performance 
• Chief executive compensation 
• Succession planning 
• Legal issues involving the chief 


executive 
• Board practices, behavior, and 


performance 
Possible 
Invitees 


• Senior staff 
• Professional advisors 


• Professional advisors 


Frequency • At the start or end of regular meetings 
• As needed, e.g., litigation 


• At the start or end of regular meetings 
• As needed, e.g., for audit 


 







Executive Sessions: How to Use Them Regularly and Wisely 


www.boardsource © BoardSource 2007  3


Fourth, the board has a responsibility to 
maintain confidentiality to protect the 
organization. The law allows boards to handle 
certain situations in a restricted setting. For 
example, if an organization has been sued, the 
board, chief executive, and legal counsel may 
meet in executive session to decide whether to 
settle the case and the terms of the settlement. 
Sound business sense may also require that 
key strategic decisions be discussed privately. 
For example, if an organization is considering 
a merger, the board, chief executive, and chief 
financial officer may need to consider the pros 
and cons before discussing alternative courses 
of action with various stakeholders. 
 
WHO PARTICIPATES IN EXECUTIVE SESSIONS? 
 
Participants in board meetings vary from topic to topic, meeting to meeting, and organization to 
organization. In addition to board members and the chief executive, board meeting participants 
may include senior staff, constituents, professional advisors, and sometimes interested members 
of the community. United by an interest in the organization, these individuals play different roles 
— decision makers, experts, commentators, guests, and observers. 
 
During an executive session, the board room looks different. The full board will almost always 
be there, but the chief executive may participate for only a portion of the session. Outside 
advisors (e.g., lawyers, auditors, consultants) may be invited to issue findings or provide 
professional guidance. On a very limited basis, select senior staff members (e.g., chief financial 
officer, general counsel, development director) may be included to present a report or provide 
their perspective, or they may be excluded altogether. Deciding whom to include and when 
should be determined by the purpose of the session, bearing in mind that an individual can be 
invited to join for a portion of the discussion and then excused at the appropriate time. 
 
WHAT IS APPROPRIATE TO DISCUSS DURING EXECUTIVE SESSIONS? 
 
Board meeting agenda items serve different purposes — from team building and information 
sharing to deliberation and decision making. The particular items on the docket shape who needs 
to attend the meeting and its degree of openness. When planning executive sessions, the board 
chair and chief executive should specify the timing, purpose and topics, and attendees. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSIONS WITH THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
Executive sessions with the chief executive may be essential to advancing the organization’s 
business interests and to cultivating a constructive partnership between the board and the chief 
executive. Many operational issues that require confidentiality may also require the presence of 


CAUSE FOR CONFUSION: 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE VS. EXECUTIVE SESSION 


An executive session is a special closed meeting of the 
board. An executive committee is a special committee of 
the board whose composition and purpose are defined in 
an organization’s bylaws. When an executive committee 
meets, it is not called an executive session. Many, but 
not all, boards have executive committees. They are 
often composed of the officers, chief executive, and 
perhaps committee chairs or other board members. 
Some executive committees meet only in emergencies. 
Others meet more regularly and are charged with 
handling business between regular board meetings. For 
more information, refer to Executive Committee by Mark 
Light (BoardSource, 2004). 







Executive Sessions: How to Use Them Regularly and Wisely 


www.boardsource © BoardSource 2007  4


the chief executive and sometimes others to enable an informed conversation. Common issues 
for executive sessions with the chief executive include 
 
• KPAWN Sessions. To support the chief executive, many boards have adopted KPAWN 


sessions to discuss what Keeps the President AWake at Night. These executive sessions, 
with just the board and chief executive, create an informal setting that is “off the record.” 
They are intended not for taking action, but rather for thinking together. For example, they 
may be used to take the board’s temperature on an industry issue or to identify potential 
operational problems (e.g., high staff turnover). Because chief executives do not have true 
peers within an organization, KPAWN sessions are a unique forum for meeting with the 
board without other staff or outsiders present. 
 


• Alleged Illegal or Improper 
Activities. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
has drawn attention to the 
importance of whistleblower policies 
and protection for employees who 
report suspected illegal or unethical 
activities (e.g., embezzlement, 
sexual harassment, discrimination). 
If such issues are raised, the board 
may need to meet in executive 
session to ensure appropriate 
discussion and confidentiality. If the 
chief executive is implicated, 
obviously, he or she should be 
excluded from the executive session. 
 


• Litigation. We live in a litigious 
society, and nonprofits are not 
immune from lawsuits. The board 
needs to be apprised of potential or 
actual litigation against the 
organization. Depending on the 
nature and stage of the litigation, the 


board may meet in executive session to discuss progress, decisions, and repercussions 
resulting from any lawsuits. Often, the organization’s legal counsel (internal or outside) and 
sometimes chief financial officer may also be included in executive sessions focused on 
litigation. 


 
• Major Business Transactions. Nonprofits, like all enterprises, need to be able to strategize, 


plan, and negotiate business deals without divulging inside information. Certain opportunities 
— from real estate deals (e.g., purchasing a new building) to operational transitions (e.g., 
undertaking a strategic alliance) to organizational failures (e.g., filing for bankruptcy) — 
require frank discussions about proprietary matters. Executive sessions emphasize the need 


CASE IN POINT: DEFINING ROLES 


The executive director and board chair of a local 
organization met monthly for breakfast. These 
informal conversations, which covered a range of 
strategic and operational issues, helped them work 
as a team in leading the organization. Realizing 
that these informal conversations helped the board 
chair focus on strategic matters and become more 
engaged in the organization’s work, the executive 
director suggested they use executive sessions 
with the full board as a way to get all board 
members similarly committed to their cause and 
engaged in their work. 


The executive director had always considered the 
board as his boss. But, he found it lonely at the top 
of the organizational chart and wanted a group of 
peer executives for brainstorming. The board 
already met twice a year in executive sessions for 
the financial audit and for executive performance 
review and compensation. He and the board had 
great confidence in each other. By suggesting the 
board meet in executive session without him, he 
felt he would inspire even greater confidence, 
commitment, and performance from the board. 







Executive Sessions: How to Use Them Regularly and Wisely 


www.boardsource © BoardSource 2007  5


for confidentiality and allow the board to explore the situation without prematurely revealing 
information. Key staff and professional advisors may be included in these executive sessions. 


 
• Crisis Management. When facing a crisis — be it a natural disaster or a scandal — the 


board may need to meet with the chief executive in private to discuss the situation and 
evaluate the consequences of 
various courses of action. To 
avoid creating unnecessary 
tension, the board needs to be 
away from the eyes and ears of 
employees and other constituents 
who may not be pleased with the 
trade-offs under consideration. 
Under these difficult 
circumstances, an executive 
session helps minimize 
unnecessary concern by limiting 
the number of people involved. 
For planning purposes, key staff 
and outside advisors may also be 
included in these executive 
sessions. 


 
EXECUTIVE SESSIONS WITHOUT THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
Just as it is important for the board and chief executive to tackle critical organizational situations 
together, the board also needs time to focus on its governance duties without any staff present. 
Some of this has to do with the board’s oversight function, and some has to do with the board’s 
need to take responsibility for itself and to function as a cohesive team. Understanding the value 
of executive sessions and developing routine procedures for using them can help alleviate a chief 
executive’s anxiety. A confident chief executive sends a powerful message of trust to the board 
and staff when he or she regularly and voluntarily steps out of the boardroom. 
 
Executive sessions without the chief executive are essential for strengthening board oversight 
and building board capacity for robust discussion. Common issues that necessitate the board 
meeting in executive session without the chief executive, regardless of whether he or she is a 
voting member of the board, or any other staff present include 
 
• Meeting with the Auditor. As part of its fiduciary responsibilities, a nonprofit board is 


responsible for the financial audit. The auditors should be selected by and report to the board, 
and the board should review and accept the financial audit. At some point in the board’s 
review of the financial audit, the board should meet in an executive session with the auditors 
without any staff present. This allows the board — directly or via a designated committee — 
to receive unfiltered feedback about the organization’s financial health and practices, as well 
as its finance staff. It also allows the board to have a less inhibited discussion than might 


CASE IN POINT: LESSONS LEARNED AMONG BUSINESS LEADERS 


The board of a national, federated organization was wrestling with 
protecting its brand. Local chapters, despite a common mission and 
similar programs, operated with widely divergent definitions of 
quality, sustainability, and impact. A few, as is often the case, 
ended up on the front page of their local papers with questionable 
business practices. The chief executive turned to the board, which 
included quite a few captains of industry, for guidance and insight. 


Thanks to a pre-existing culture of openness and the privacy 
afforded by an executive session — without other staff present — 
the nonprofit chief executive was able to facilitate a dialogue about 
the role of headquarters in managing far-flung franchises. 
Corporate board members freely shared similar problems, 
attempted fixes, and working solutions from their firsthand 
professional experience. In the end, not only did the federated 
organization tap into a wealth of knowledge, but board members 
learned valuable leadership lessons from each other. 







Executive Sessions: How to Use Them Regularly and Wisely 


www.boardsource © BoardSource 2007  6


otherwise occur with the chief executive or other staff present. 
 


• Chief Executive Performance. Nonprofit boards are responsible for managing the chief 
executive. This is a difficult, sometimes awkward task to carry out collectively, so the board 
needs to find appropriate venues for this important duty. An executive session allows board 
members to share their individual perspectives and to provide input to the board committee 
or officer assigned to convey the board’s message. These discussions are best held after 
information has been gathered in advance using an appropriate performance review tool. 


 
• Chief Executive Compensation. As with the annual performance review, executive 


compensation also requires a highly confidential conversation. An executive session is an 
essential requirement to ensure that the full board understands the compensation philosophy 
and approves the details of the complete compensation package. It is common, perfectly 
appropriate, and highly recommended3 that the board discuss the specifics of the arrangement 
in private before the information is disclosed publicly through the IRS Form 990. 


 
• Executive Succession 


Planning. Nonprofit 
boards cannot delegate 
responsibility for hiring 
the chief executive, and 
one often-overlooked step 
in this process is 
succession planning. Just 
as the board needs to pay 
attention to its current 
chief executive, it also 
needs to pay attention to 
future leadership needs. 
Some succession planning 
conversations should take 
place between the board 
and chief executive, and 
others need to occur 
exclusively among board 
members. This helps the 
board not only plan ahead, 
but also be better prepared 
should the unexpected 


                                                 
3 Intermediate sanctions are designed to prevent excess benefit transactions — including excessive executive 
compensation — in 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations. These IRS regulations include a “safe harbor” provision 
for nonprofits that meet three tests: (1) compensation must be based on data from comparable organizations, (2) an 
authorized body, whose members do not have any conflicts of interest, must approve the transaction in advance, and 
(3) the authorized body must document its decision. For more information, refer to Dollars and Sense: The 
Nonprofit Board’s Guide to Determining Executive Compensation by Brian H. Vogel and Charles W. Quatt 
(BoardSource, 2005). 


CASE IN POINT: A SELF-CORRECTING BOARD 


At an association’s annual retreat, the board found itself 
fragmenting between the larger and the smaller institutions. 
The chief executive struggled to mediate a conversation about 
how changes in the industry should drive its programs. Board 
members continued to act as a focus group, expressing 
concerns about their individual institutions’ needs rather than 
the future of the association. At a break, one of the board 
members suggested that the board dismiss all staff, including 
the chief executive, from the conversation for 45 minutes. 


During the executive session, board members acknowledged 
that they felt pressured to stand their ground in front of staff 
for fear of losing member benefits and that they too readily 
dismissed the opinions of some board members in favor of 
others. A candid conversation touched upon the association’s 
mission, the common values that motivated board members, 
and the chief executive’s powerful presence. 


Before returning to the meeting, the board chair summarized 
the gist of the conversation for the chief executive. When the 
retreat resumed, board members rearranged themselves so 
that the larger institutions were no longer seated opposite the 
smaller institutions. The strategic planning conversation 
resumed, with a more intentional focus on the needs of 
different constituents and the relationship between programs. 







Executive Sessions: How to Use Them Regularly and Wisely 


www.boardsource © BoardSource 2007  7


happen. 
 
• Board Self-Management. Nonprofit boards serve as a leadership team. To function better, 


collectively, team members need time to assess and adjust their own performance — to pay 
attention to their behavior, to bolster relationships — away from the chief executive’s 
observation and direction. Executive sessions allow board members to relate to each other as 
peers and partners. They can be a productive way to deal with difficult and delicate board 
conversations. For example, they can be used to identify board and staff members who go 
beyond the call of duty, encourage quieter board members to participate more fully, ease into 
a potentially divisive discussion, and correct unproductive or inappropriate board meeting 
behavior. These kinds of executive sessions facilitate greater candor among board members 
and strengthen the board’s independence from the chief executive. 


 
PRACTICE TIP: THE BOARD HUDDLE 


A regular debriefing at the end of each board meeting, without the chief executive, brings conversations 
that would otherwise happen in the parking lot into a collective forum. It gives board members a place for 
both praise and probing. Not only can this bring the board together, but it also reserves a moment for the 
board to identify potential problems without causing undue concern. However, chief executives often get 
nervous — understandably — when the board meets without them. To assuage this anxiety, try these five 
tips to build an atmosphere of trust between the board and chief executive: 


1. Make executive sessions a regular part of your board meeting agenda. Hold one every time the board 
meets. This diffuses the notion that executive sessions are convened only to deal with matters 
involving the chief executive or in times of crisis. 


2. Set the agenda for the executive session in conversations between the board chair and the chief 
executive prior to the board meeting. 


3. Invite the chief executive to join part of the executive session for a private conversation with the 
board, unless the business at hand makes that inappropriate. This sends a clear message that the 
relationship between the board and the chief executive is paramount.  


4. Keep the conversation in the executive session on topic. Do not let it devolve into gossip. It is the 
board chair’s responsibility to guide the discussion to a productive conclusion. 


5. Summarize the executive session for the chief executive as soon as possible. The board chair should 
communicate the gist of the conversation, especially those issues that reflect the board’s views of the 
chief executive’s or the organization’s performance, to the chief executive. 


 
WHAT ARE THE LEGAL BOUNDARIES AROUND EXECUTIVE SESSIONS? 
 
Nonprofit organizations must follow federal and state statutes that regulate businesses and their 
transactions with individuals. These laws are designed to protect constituents, clients, staff, and 
organizations. Nonprofit leaders need to be familiar with and abide by the applicable laws and 
regulations. For instance, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 
(HIPAA) requires that hospitals keep patients’ medical records private. Boards should rarely, if 
ever, be involved in such private client matters, but if such details surface during a board meeting 
or are linked to a board issue, they must be handled appropriately and all those present must 
agree not to disclose this information. 
 







Executive Sessions: How to Use Them Regularly and Wisely 


www.boardsource © BoardSource 2007  8


In addition, some organizational business may legitimately be kept confidential. For example, 
certain discussions with legal counsel are subject to attorney-client privilege or some donors may 
wish to remain anonymous to the public. An executive session gives the board a private setting 
for these kinds of confidential discussions. 
 







Executive Sessions: How to Use Them Regularly and Wisely 


www.boardsource © BoardSource 2007  9


SUNSHINE IN THE BOARDROOM 
 
Some organizations, such as those receiving 
certain kinds of government funding, are 
subject to sunshine laws that require open 
meetings and define the use of executive 
sessions. Most sunshine laws clarify which 
records do not need to be disclosed (e.g., 
litigation, disciplinary matters, job 
interviews) and which do (e.g., budget 
discussions, salaries of public officials). 
 
While state sunshine laws4 vary 
considerably in their specificity, they 
generally define what constitutes an 
executive session, how and whom to notify 
of their scheduling, and what can be handled 
in closed session. Nonprofit leaders need to 
be familiar with these legal limits to know 
when an executive session is allowed and 
the proper procedure for handling it. For 
example, the board may need to cite the 
state sunshine law, identify the issue that 
warrants a closed session, and reference the 
closed session in the board meeting minutes. 
 
HOW SHOULD EXECUTIVE SESSIONS BE HANDLED? 
 
The following procedures provide step-by-step guidance for facilitating executive sessions: 
 
1. Policies. Begin by establishing a board policy that articulates the process for calling and 


conducting an executive session. Establish guidelines for the routine use of executive 
sessions and, if necessary, identify issues that are acceptable for closed meetings. Use the 
following sample policies, which represent two different approaches to executive sessions, as 
starting points for drafting a policy appropriate to your organization’s needs and culture. 


 
• Sample Policy 1. The board of directors will hold an executive session, without the chief 


executive, in conjunction with each regularly scheduled board meeting. 
 


• Sample Policy 2. An executive session of the board may be called by the chair under the 
following circumstances: (a) on the advice of counsel, (b) to discuss current pending legal 
matters, (c) to consult with the auditors and compensation consultants, (d) to acquire or 
dispose of property, (e) to discuss or act on personnel issues, or (f) to address such other 


                                                 
4 The Reporters Committee for Freedom of the Press maintains a helpful guide to state sunshine laws at 
www.rcfp.org/ogg/index.php. Because these laws can be difficult to interpret, it is best to consult with legal counsel 
about the circumstances under which an executive session may be called for organizations subject to such laws. 


CASE IN POINT: GOVERNING IN THE SUNSHINE 


By law, a well-established cultural organization was 
required to hold public board meetings and announce the 
agenda in advance. Periodically, a few members of the 
community attended these meetings, but they did not often 
make comments or suggestions. At one meeting, the board 
was considering a significant change in strategic direction 
that would affect many of its beloved programs. In order to 
have a substantive discussion of the proposal, the board 
needed to delve into proprietary organizational matters, 
including financial performance and personnel implications. 


When the board reached this item on the agenda, it first 
invited comments from the public because so many people 
had expressed interest in the issue. Then, having 
previously consulted its attorney, the board went into 
executive session. After a complete discussion of the 
proposal and its ramifications, the board resumed its 
meeting in public. The board chair explained why the 
meeting had been adjourned to executive session, 
summarized the highlights of the conversation that had 
taken place during the executive session, and called for a 
vote on the proposal. In front of the public audience, the 
board voted to approve the proposed change. 


This process ensured that the full board was able to 
discuss a critical business decision while complying with 
the legal requirement for open meetings. At the same time, 
it also ensured that the public was able to voice its views 
on the matter, understand the process used to consider the 
issues, and to hear the votes of individual board members. 







Executive Sessions: How to Use Them Regularly and Wisely 


www.boardsource © BoardSource 2007  10


matters as the board deems appropriate. At the option of the chair, or upon majority vote 
of the directors, an executive session of the board may be called. 
 
While in executive session, only board members and individuals invited by the chair may 
be present. At the option of the chair, the chief executive may be excused. Board 
members may discuss the business conducted in an executive session only with other 
board members including or not including the chief executive as directed by the chair, 
persons present in the executive session by invitation of the chair, and others upon advice 
of counsel. Those present will be reminded that the executive session deliberations and 
minutes are confidential. 


 
2. Calling an Executive Session. Most executive sessions are planned by the board chair and 


chief executive in advance and listed in the agenda itself. But, choosing the right moment to 
call an unplanned executive session often demands tact and courage. Usually the chair has 
the authority to call an executive session. Should a board member request an executive 
session, some boards require that a majority or super majority confirm the decision. Under 
difficult circumstances, the chair needs to use 
discretion when announcing the purpose of the 
executive session. 


 
3. Attendance. The meeting agenda should 


identify executive session participants, 
including any non-board members. If 
confidentiality is required, even if everyone 
present is a board member, the board should 
still go into executive session. Some nonprofits 
choose to have legal counsel present for all 
board meetings, including executive sessions. 


 
4. Subject. The chair should facilitate the conversation so that the issue at hand gets addressed 


during the executive session. When the purpose of the executive session has been 
accomplished, the regular board meeting resumes. 


 
5. Discussion. Executive sessions should be for discussion, negotiation, and in some instances 


decision making. For example, the board chair may use the closed doors to take a straw poll, 
or the chief executive may want to gauge the board’s appetite for a new initiative. After 
discussion, should the board wish to take action, it can be done back in the board meeting. 
Other formal decisions, such as determining executive compensation or settling contract 
disputes, are best decided in an executive session and ratified back in the board meeting. 
 


6. Informing the Chief Executive. After an executive session without the chief executive, the 
chair should summarize the substance of the executive session. This immediate follow-up 
helps eliminate unnecessary worry by the chief executive about these meetings. 


 


WHAT DOES ROBERT SAY? 


Robert’s Rules of Order define an executive 
session as a meeting or portion of a meeting 
whose proceedings are secret. Only members of 
the governing body are entitled to attend, but 
they may invite others to stay at the pleasure of 
the board. A motion is required to go into 
executive session, and a majority must approve 
it. Those present must maintain the 
confidentiality of the discussion, and anyone who 
violates that confidentiality is subject to 
disciplinary action. (Emphasis added.) 







Executive Sessions: How to Use Them Regularly and Wisely 


www.boardsource © BoardSource 2007  11


7. Documentation. 
• Minutes of the Executive Session. If the session is an informal discussion, detailed 


minutes may not be necessary, but the general substance of the executive session itself 
should be noted. If the session contributed to a board decision about a difficult or 
important issue, minutes may be necessary. Some organizations have legal counsel 
maintain minutes of all executive sessions. Executive session minutes should be shared 
only with participants and should not be attached to the regular board meeting minutes. 
Any confidential documents distributed for an executive session should be clearly 
marked as confidential and maintained by the chief executive and/or the board chair. 
 


• Board Meeting Minutes. The regular board meeting minutes should indicate when the 
board went into an executive session, what the primary reason was, any formal decisions 
that were made in executive session, and when the board came out of executive session. 


 
CASE IN POINT: WHAT WASN’T SAID IN THE BOARDROOM 


The incoming board chair of a private foundation contemplated the issues facing the organization, its 
grantees, and the community they served.  She feared that current board meetings did not allow the 
board to get granular enough. While efficient and productive, meetings were driven by a carefully scripted 
agenda. Board members asked questions and offered observations, but all from a polite and respectful 
distance. She worried about what was not being said. 


While the board/staff relationship was strong, this trustee felt that periodic executive sessions could make 
it stronger. The board valued its time with senior staff and greatly appreciated their knowledge of program 
areas and the community. Both board and staff found it helpful to ask questions of each other. This gave 
board members a chance to hear staff present the logic behind recommendations and staff a chance to 
hear how board members analyzed recommendations. But, at times, trustees were hesitant to voice ideas 
that might make a staff member feel unduly challenged or criticized. 


Board and staff agreed to experiment with executive sessions. After using them periodically, board 
members became more comfortable with the very candid discussions that ensued. Over time, this ability 
to have more candid discussions seeped into the regular sessions with staff. Board members and staff 
agree that executive sessions created a space for the board to have real discussions, which helped 
enhance overall board performance. 


 
HOW CAN WE AVOID MISUSING EXECUTIVE SESSIONS? 
 
As with many practices that are not fully understood, executive sessions can cause consternation. 
And, as with practices that are not completely open, they have the potential for misinterpretation 
and misuse. When not well managed, executive sessions can fuel problems, ranging from a lack 
of transparency and disregard for public accountability to inappropriate board member behavior 
and distrust between board and staff members. But, they need not. 
 
Executive sessions are one of many valuable tools nonprofit boards can use to strengthen 
governance and organizational leadership. They create an environment for important 
conversations among board members, sometimes alone and sometimes with the chief executive. 
Time spent in direct, unencumbered conversations creates stronger relationships among 
nonprofit leaders that can help them weather ups and downs together. A thoughtful, attentive, 
and even-handed board chair can be critical in managing difficult conversations. 
 







Executive Sessions: How to Use Them Regularly and Wisely 


www.boardsource © BoardSource 2007  12


The following guidelines can help ensure that executive sessions become a productive, rather 
than a dubious, practice: 
 
• Facilitate executive sessions judiciously. Executive sessions exist for particular purposes 


that the board should clearly define and follow. When in executive session, stick to the issue 
at hand — grounded in facts and circumstances, not gossip or speculation. Do not let 
executive sessions be used to scheme behind the chief executive’s back, fuel rumors, isolate 
dissenting board members, or manipulate the results of a vote. 


 
• Create a safe haven. Board service often requires uncompromising, independent decision 


making. Use an executive session to create a forum for thoughtful discussion, not to hide 
behind a cloak of secrecy. In the absence of staff, encourage board members to feel more 
comfortable asking questions, expressing doubts, and challenging assumptions. These private 
discussions can help nurture a robust discussion style that can spill over into the boardroom. 


 
• Communicate, communicate, communicate. A closed door discussion provides privacy 


when a board needs to handle delicate matters, but eventually the message needs to be 
shared. Tell those being excused when, why, and how the board uses executive sessions. The 
board chair should clearly state when the executive session begins and concludes. After an 
executive session, share the results with those who need to know. 


 
• Take action in meetings. The majority of board business belongs in the standard board 


meeting, regardless of the difficulty of reaching the ultimate decision. Use executive sessions 
for frank open conversations but, when possible, return officially to the board meeting to take 
formal votes. Remember, final board decisions are recorded in the minutes and shared with 
staff, and the results often become public knowledge when the organization takes action. 


 
A board must know how to address the right issues in the right setting with the right individuals 
present. A savvy board manages itself and relationships thoughtfully. It distinguishes between 
inappropriate secrecy and legitimate privacy. Relying on good judgment, it is able to take 
advantage of the seclusion an executive session provides when private communication is 
necessary. At the same time, knowing how not to abuse executive sessions, a savvy board 
manages to maintain trust and confidence in the organization’s integrity and processes. 








1.0 


ADRIA Board of Directors Orientation 2014 


Friday, June 20, 2014, 6:15 – 9 pm (commencing with a catered dinner) 


(Regular Board meeting is on Sat, June 21, 2014 commencing at 8:30 am) 


ADRIA offices (corner 112 Ave – 73 Street) 


Concordia University College - Ralph King Athletic Centre 
Room CE223A 
7128 Ada Boulevard, Edmonton, Alberta  T5B 4E4 
 
 


1.  Pre-Orientation Tasks for Directors: 


 Read ADRIA bylaws (BoardSuite) 


 Read ADRIA policy manual (BoardSuite) 


 Complete the on-line workshops on Governance and Effective Meetings, both found at 
http://www1.agric.gov.ab.ca/$department/deptdocs.nsf/all/hst13487 (the materials in PDF 
can be downloaded from this site, also on BoardSuite) 


 If more information is desired on Roles & Responsibilities, complete following on-line course 
from the Alberta Culture Board Development Program:  
http://www.culture.alberta.ca/bdp/alta/index.html  


 If more information is desired on a host of other governance topics, see the Bulletins in the  
Alberta Culture Board Development Program 
http://www.culture.alberta.ca/bdp/bulletins.aspx  


 


2. Agenda for Friday June 20, 2014,  6:15 – 9 pm 
6:15 pm Dinner with ADRIA staff, and icebreaker activities 
 
7:00 pm  History of ADRIA/AAMS – Past President Jim Bancroft (15 min) 
   
7:15 pm  ADRIC/ADRIA history + relationship – Chuck Smith 
 
7:30 pm  Financial Update – Treasurer Mike Hokanson and staff member Karen 
 
7:45 pm   How do we govern – stabilizing our practices - Governance Committee Chair Stan 


Galbraith 


 Types of Non-Profit Boards 


 We are driven by our Vision and Mission (our Ends) 



http://www1.agric.gov.ab.ca/$department/deptdocs.nsf/all/hst13487

http://www.culture.alberta.ca/bdp/alta/index.html

http://www.culture.alberta.ca/bdp/bulletins.aspx





 What are Ends and where do we find the ends? 


 Effect of bylaws and policy 


 Evaluation – who does it and when? 


 Use of committees – what committees are board committees?  What committees 
must a director chair? 


 The role of the Governance Committee as a resource for the board. 


 How we run our meetings. 


 Board Meetings 


 Email meetings  


 Conference calls 


 In Camera Sessions - In each board meeting, the board will have the opportunity to 
discuss privately concerns without the Executive Director and staff present.  Available 
on BoardSuite:  Executive Sessions:  How to use them regularly and wisely. 


8:10 pm The Year Ahead – President Wendy Hassen and Executive Director Paul Conway 
 


 Themes for this year. The President’s priorities for the upcoming year and any 
particular protocols she will follow. Also, your passion for ADRIA. 


 The Executive Director’s goals for the year ahead and your passion for ADRIA. 


 
8:20 pm  Director and Officer roles and responsibilities and Board and Executive Director 


Relationship – Executive Director Paul Conway   


 who does what & who is accountable for what 


 what are the contact points (organizational chart and policy) 


 Executive Director reports for the Board 


 what other reports do we want/need: 
 financial reports 
 Key non-financial metrics we monitor 
 why dashboard metrics matter 


 building the team. 


 
8:35 pm   ADRIA’s Business - Board View – Governance Committee Chair Stan Galbraith 


 Strategic Plan (vision, mission, values, goals) 
 How the strategic plan evolves 


 Operational Plan  
 How the operational plan changes 


8:42 pm   ADRIA’s Business- Operational View – Executive Director Paul Conway 
 



http://www.foaj.ca/app/webroot/vbr/uploads/Director/Director%20Handbook/ExecutiveSessions.pdf





 ADRIA services  


 Current members and issues 
 How we determine the members’ issues 


8:50 pm   Current major projects (Wendy) 


 Task Force 


 Designations Review 


 Policy Rewrite by the Governance Committee 


 Present and finish Populating the calendar 


9:00 pm  Adjourn for team building. 
 
 


 
See:   Policy Manual:  15. New Director/Board Orientation and Evaluation 
  








 - 1 -  


– ADRIA BOARD MINUTES June 20-21, 2014 – Approved  Page 1 of 9 


ADRIA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 


HELD IN EDMONTON ON FRIDAY, JUNE 20 AND SATURDAY JUNE 21, 2014 


 


Attending: Jim Bancroft, Q.C.; Joanne Munro, C. Med; Wendy Hassen, C. Med; Stan Galbraith, 


C. Med; Barrie Marshall, Q.C.;  Angela Boyes, Q. Med.; Jeff Jessamine, Q. Arb.; Don 


Goodfellow, Q.C., C. Arb; Mike Hokanson, LLB (20th of June by phone only); Paul Conway. 


Regrets: Dolores Herman, Q. Med: Chuck Smith, Q. Med;   


 


MEETING COMMENCES: 7:50 p.m., June 20th, 2014. 


 


1.0 Welcome 


The President, Wendy Hassen, welcomed the other Board Members, the Executive Director, Paul 


Conway, and the accountant, Karen Sommerfeld, to the meeting. 


 


1.2 Review of Agenda Items and Addition of Any Items 


1.2.1 Board Meeting Minutes of April 16, 2014  


Wendy Hassen pointed out the necessity of approving the Board Meeting Minutes of April 16, 


2014 (vote by email correspondence). 


 


1.2.2 Report on AAMS 


Don Goodfellow reported that AAMS is having difficulty raising funds and has an uncertain 


future.  Its difficulty in raising funds is likely attributable to the fact that, since it separated from 


ADRIA, it has no “track record” in terms in what it has achieved in the past. 


Barrie Marshall suggested that, in speaking to its track record, AAMS should point to ADRIA as 


its principle achievement. 


 


6.3  Treasurer’s Report: (moved forward to accommodate schedule of the treasurer M. 


Hokanson)  


Mike Hokanson advised that the financial statements have now been audited.  The ED advised 


that he would arrange for their execution. Mike Hokanson further advised that he has compared 


the audited financials to the draft financials presented at the AGM and stated that, while they are 







 - 2 -  


– ADRIA BOARD MINUTES June 20-21, 2014 – Approved  Page 2 of 9 


consistent in the content, the structure is somewhat different.  He indicated that this was 


unfortunate given that the membership had seen the earlier draft financial statements and had 


been advised that there would be no content changes.  The Board members agreed that it would 


be helpful to point out to the membership that, while there were some format revisions from the 


earlier draft financials, there was no difference in content. 


Stan Galbraith questioned the blank showing next to “Reserve Fund”.  Karen Sommerfeld 


pointed out that some funds had been set aside out of the Operating Account for specified 


expense items and that what Ms. Sommerfeld calls “Reserve Fund” is distinct from that item in 


the audited financials.  A board member pointed out that the use of different terminology in the 


future would avoid confusion. 


The ED advised that he would be scheduling a meeting with the auditor in July to deal with the 


items referred to in the “Action Item” below. 


The ED also advised that it is the goal of ADRIA to ensure that its budgets and financial 


statements in the future reflect costs and revenues in each of the membership and education 


categories to better enable ADRIA to identify trends and, if necessary, priorities for the future.  


A further goal is to break out this information with respect to the different business centers to 


permit the Board to better identify the profitability of each.  Ms. Sommerfeld advised that there 


are a great number of general fixed operating expenses (e.g. Rent) which will present challenges 


in making precise allocations.  Don Goodfellow and Stan Galbraith also pointed out that there 


may be no way to allocate many general expenses in a meaningful way.  Joanne Munro advised 


that mere anecdotal information may not be particularly helpful.   


 


BOARD MOTION:  


It is moved by Mike Hokanson and Seconded by Stan Galbraith that the Treasurer’s Report 


(attached to these Minutes) be accepted. Approved unanimously. 


 


ACTION ITEMS: 


The ED to set up a meeting with the auditor in July to discuss the following issues: 


1. the auditor needs to ensure, in the future, that the audited financial statements are ready to 


be approved by the membership of ADRIA at its AGM. 







 - 3 -  


– ADRIA BOARD MINUTES June 20-21, 2014 – Approved  Page 3 of 9 


2. that the content of the audited financial statements is to be restructured along business 


lines with a clearer delineation of revenue and expense items as they pertain to 


membership and education functions. 


3. Mike Hokanson and, the ED, and Karen Sommerfeld will bring to the Board more 


concrete recommendations respecting the allocation of expenses and revenues as between 


membership and education functions. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


Ms. Sommerfeld to use a different form to describe her “Reserve Fund” category in the future. 


 


2.0 Minutes of Previous Meetings 


2.1 BOARD MOTION:   


It is moved by Jim Bancroft and seconded by Barrie Marshall to approve the Minutes of the 5th 


April, 2014 and the 16th of April, 2014 Meeting Minutes.  Approved unanimously. 


 


3.0 In Camera Session 


Stan Galbraith reported that in camera sessions can be a useful tool for Board to deal with 


matters for discussion by the Board and which are not appropriate to be included in the minutes.  


In camera sessions encourage open and frank discussions regarding matters such as staff 


evaluations. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


In camera sessions will be added as an agenda item for all future meetings. 


 


4.0 Business Arising 


4.1 Memorandum of Understanding – AAMS/ADRIA Relations 


Mike Hokanson advised that he and Eric McAvity discussed proposed changes to the MoU 


(attached to these minutes) and that Mr. McAvity advised that he had received positive feedback 


from his Board respecting the earlier draft.  Mr. McAvity has invited Mr. Hokanson to propose 


the revisions that ADRIA has in mind and provide these to him for presentation to the AAMS 


Board.  The email string between Mr. McAvity and Mr. Hokanson is also attached to these 


minutes.  







 - 4 -  


– ADRIA BOARD MINUTES June 20-21, 2014 – Approved  Page 4 of 9 


 


 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


ED to provide the revised MoU to Eric McAvity for his review and anticipated adoption by the 


AAMS Board. 


 


4.2 Coaches and Instructors Insurance (Agenda item 3.4 from April, 2014).  


The ED reported that ADRIA’s insurance agent, Marsh, had advised that, while ADRIA’s 


coaches and instructors were covered by ADRIA’ policy of insurance while providing training to 


outside organizations, they were not so covered in providing training to ADRIA members.  The 


ED further advised that Marsh had advised that the additional cost of such coverage would be 


prohibitively expensive at $500. 


The Board agreed that this made no sense and that the membership should be advised against 


purchasing such insurance. 


 


Don Goodfellow raised two issues: 


1. Whether arbitrators and mediators, who are members of law societies, are covered by 


their law society’s insurance policies when performing arbitrations or mediations. 


2. Whether arbitrators and mediators who are members of law societies are covered by their 


law societies’ insurance policies when teaching arbitration or mediation. 


 


ACTION ITEMS:   


Don Goodfellow will write a letter to the Law Society of Alberta to determine the extent of 


coverage of lawyers performing the arbitration and mediation functions outlined in the issues 


above.   


The ED will update the board in September on this issue. 


 


4.3 Privacy and CASL Legislation (Agenda Item 3.9 from April 2014) 


The ED reminded us of our earlier discussions on privacy issues and stated that appropriate 


security measures had been taken with respect to the physical security of the ADRIA premises 


and its contents.  The ED further advised that the privacy policy is now up on BoardSuite. 







 - 5 -  


– ADRIA BOARD MINUTES June 20-21, 2014 – Approved  Page 5 of 9 


The ED also commented on ADRIA’s compliance with the CASL “anti-spam” legislation.  He 


stated that problems for ADRIA were relatively small because ADRIA is a membership 


organization.  All old members will, when they renew their memberships, have to tick off a box 


on their renewal forms that they are prepared to receive emails and information from ADRIA.  


New members will have to provide a similar acknowledgement on their forms. 


The ED also reported that there is a three year compliance period respecting the incoming 


legislation.  The ED expects ADRIA will be 100% compliant within one year. 


The ED also reported that, as per the action item from the April 5, 2014 minutes, the Privacy 


Commissioner would be invited to address ADRIA’s membership. 


 


MEETING ADJOURNED: 8:55 P.M. FOR ORIENTATION.  


BUSINESS MEETING RECONVENES AT 12:00 P.M.  


 


4.4 Future “On Board” Issues 


Wendy Hassen advised that she wrote the On Board issues while in her position as Vice 


President and now, as President, she wished to delegate that function.  Barrie Marshall 


volunteered to take over this function from Wendy Hassen.  Joanne Munro agreed to assist Mr. 


Marshall with editing.  


 


ACTION ITEM: 


Barrie Marshall to take over responsibility for future On Board issues with the editing assistance 


of Joanne Munro.  Such issues to go out after each Board meeting. 


 


5.1 Complaints Policy 


The ED reported that while he has not yet advanced the policy aspect of this matter, the Bylaw 


amendment has been dealt with.  The proposed policy amendment will be brought to the Board 


at the September meeting.  Tabled to September meeting.  


 


6. Reports 


6.1 President’s Report  


Wendy Hassen advised that she has no report. 


 







 - 6 -  


– ADRIA BOARD MINUTES June 20-21, 2014 – Approved  Page 6 of 9 


6.2 Executive Director’s Report  


The Executive Director presented his report attached to these minutes.  He highlighted the fact 


that membership in ADRIA is approaching an all time high and that the data base is now broken 


down such that it accurately reflects north vs. south and out of province membership.  Wendy 


Hassen inquired whether there is a Memorandum of Understanding or agreement between 


ADRIA and ADRIC.  The ED advised that he wasn’t aware of one but he would look into this.  


The ED also identified a possible area for further growth of ADRIA through forging better ties 


with Mount Royal University and its training program. 


The ED further advised that ADRIA is on track for surpassing 2013 regarding course registration 


and student days. 


The ED also reported that, regarding training, ADRIA is continuing to refine its mediation and 


arbitration courses which ADRIA had agreed with ADRIC to do several years ago.  ADRIA is, 


however, mindful that it is a membership organization and that it needs to eventually move out 


of the area of basic core training.  It would, however, continue to provide education while 


ADRIA develops new business lines.  It needs to continue to expand its liaison with other 


educational institutions. 


Respecting designations, applications are up with as many in March as all of last year.  A 


question was posed on whether a breakdown could be provided of the various designations.   


Respecting a directory of membership, the ED will make a recommendation at the September 


meeting. 


Don Goodfellow indicated that, in his view, ADRIA should be issuing a hard copy directory. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


ED to attempt to determine if an MoU or agreement between ADRIC and ADRIA exists. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The ED to provide a breakdown of the number of C. Arbs, C. Meds, Q. Arbs, and Q. Meds and 


as between north and south. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


ED to make a recommendation respecting a membership directory. 


 







 - 7 -  


– ADRIA BOARD MINUTES June 20-21, 2014 – Approved  Page 7 of 9 


Regarding the 2015 Conference, the ED Advised that ADRIC would be coming to Western 


Canada for its National Conference in either 2015 or 2016.  A board member indicated that 


ADRIC needs to be advised that it needs to do a greater amount of forward planning in this 


regard to ensure that venues are available and the members can build the meeting into their 


schedules. 


Board members felt that ADRIA needs to do a better job of liaising with the Alberta 


representatives on ADRIC. 


 


ACTION ITEM:  


The ED will discuss this with the ED of ADRIC when he next meets with ADRIC’s ED. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The ADRIC representatives from Alberta should be invited to have dinner with the ADRIA 


Board at the time of ADRIA’s September 28th meeting.  Jim Bancroft will assist Wendy Hassen 


in organizing this event.  The ED will look into timing and location. 


Respecting the registration for this year’s AGM ED advised that ADRIA did not discount 


registration fees in the days leading up to the AGM as a means of increasing attendance.  Don 


Goodfellow suggested that, in the future, any discounts should be offered only as “early bird” 


discounts so as to encourage early registrations. 


 


6.4 Governance Committee 


Stan Galbraith reported that he is doing a review of the ADRIA policies and bylaws and will 


provide his first segment of recommended changes in September for presentation. 


He further reported that Deborah Howes had stepped down as Chair of the Governance 


Committee but had agreed to stay on as a member of the committee. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


Moved by Stan Galbraith and seconded by Barrie Marshall – Deborah Howes to be appointed as 


member of the Governance Committee.  Approved unanimously.  


 


6.5 Board Committees/Tax Task Forces 


Stan Galbraith advised that there are currently three standing committees: 







 - 8 -  


– ADRIA BOARD MINUTES June 20-21, 2014 – Approved  Page 8 of 9 


- Governance 


- Executive 


- Designations 


He further reported that, while there have been no Executive Committee Meetings; this is likely a 


good sign of the Board’s diligence in dealing with Board business.  Respecting the Designations 


Committee, Mr. Galbraith advised that there are actually two committees, one respecting 


arbitrators and one respecting mediators.   


 


MEETING ADJOURNED AT 1:30 P.M. FOR BRAINSTORMING SESSION. 


 


A number of matters discussed including the following: 


- For terms of reference, approved by the Board, for these committees. 


- Whether the Designations Committee should be a Board or an Operations Committee. 


- The Board could be a “blended” model, e.g. the Chair appointed by the Board and 


Membership appointed by the Chair 


- The need for an Appeal procedure when a candidate is rejected by either ADRIA’s 


Designations Committee or ADRIC. 


- The need for strong people on the committees. 


Some consensus seemed to emerge that the Board’s role respecting the Designations Committee 


should include: 


1. To select the Chair 


2. To draft Terms of Reference 


3. The ED and Chair to make recommendations regarding the selection of the other 


members of the committees 


4. To set staggered terms for the membership of the committees. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The ED to provide a draft terms of reference for Board approval. 


 


BRAINSTORMING ENDED AND MEETING RECONVENED AT 2:10 P.M. 


 







 - 9 -  


– ADRIA BOARD MINUTES June 20-21, 2014 – Approved  Page 9 of 9 


The ED provided a list (attached to these minutes) of other existing and possible committees.  


These committees will be further discussed at the Strategic Planning Committee in September. 


 


 


Mediation Advocacy Task Force 


Wendy Hassen and Joanne Munro reported that the Terms of Reference are now posted up on 


BoardSuite.  Otherwise Joanne Munro provided a report (attached to these minutes) summarizing 


the two meetings of the Task Force, and the steps taken by the Task Force to date. 


 


8. Staying Engaged 


Stan Galbraith pointed out that it is ADRIA policy that the Board make every effort to stay 


engaged with its membership and, in this regard, to continually look for new ways for involving 


its membership in providing input and involvement in ADRIA initiatives.  This item will, 


therefore, be a standing item on future Board agenda. 


 


9. Learning Opportunities 


The Board recognizes the importance of taking advantage of learning opportunities when 


available and that, accordingly, this should also be a standing item on each agenda.  Consistent 


with this objective, the Board has agreed to meet with ADRIC’s Alberta representatives at its 


meeting in September. 


 


10. Calendar Review 


The ED presented a draft calendar of events for the upcoming year (attached to these minutes). 


 


11. Board of Directors Meetings 


As reflected in the Agenda, the Strategic Plan Review is scheduled for the 26th and 27th of 


September (Calgary) and the Budget and ED Review is scheduled for the 28th and 29th 


November, 2014 (Edmonton).   


 


THE MEETING TERMINATED AT 2:35 PM. 


 








ADRIA Board of Directors  MEETING AGENDA June 20-21, 2014                            Page 1 of 2 
 


 


ADRIA BOARD MEETING AGENDA 


Friday, June 20, 2014 – 6:15 pm – 9 pm 


Dinner and Orientation Session 


and 


Saturday, June 21, 2014  8:30 am – 2:30 pm 


Room CE 203, Ralph King Athletic Centre- Concordia University College 


(corner 112 Ave – 73 Street) Edmonton, AB  


Benchmark 
Timings  


# Topic\Title Action Role 
Ref  
Materials 


8:30 am 1 WELCOME & AGENDA REVIEW     


 1.1 Welcome/Call to order  Record time Wendy  


 1.2 Review of Agenda Items and addition of any items  
Review and 


Amend/Adopt 
Wendy 1.2 


8:40 am 2 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S)    


 2.1 April 5, 2014 Review and Adopt Wendy 2.1 


 


8:45 am 3 In-camera session (optional)     


8:50 am 4 Business arising    


 4.1 MoU AAMS/ADRIA Relations  Mike 
4.1 


4.1.1 


 4.2 Coaches and Instructors insurance (Agenda item 


3.7 from April, 2014) 
 Paul 4.2 


 4.3 Privacy & CASL Legislation (Agenda item 3.9 from 


April, 2014) 
 Paul 


4.3.1 


4.3.2 


4.3.3 


 4.4 Future ‘On Board’ issues  Wendy  


9:20 am 5 Bylaw and Policy updates    


 
5.1 


 


Complaints Policy/Dispute Resolution (Agenda 


item 4.3 from Nov. 22, 2013) 


 


 


Joanne & 


Paul  
 


9:30 am 6 Reports (*mandatory)    


 6.1 President  Wendy  


 6.2 ED*  Paul 


6.2 


6.2.1     


 


   


 







ADRIA Board of Directors  MEETING AGENDA June 20-21, 2014                            Page 2 of 2 
 


 


 


 6.3 Treasurer*  Mike 


6.3 


6.3.1 


6.3.2 


10:00 am  Break    


10:15 am 6.4 Governance Committee  Stan  


 6.5 Board Committees/Task Forces  
Wendy & 


Joanne 
 


 


 


6.5.1 


 


Terms of Reference for Regional (ADRIC) 


Designation Committees & Replacement for Jim 


Willson 


 Paul   


 6.6 


ADRIC Representative* 


-ADRIC Code of Ethics & Conduct 


-ADRIC marketing of C. and Q. designations 


-ADRIC Special Resolution, June 20, 2014 


 Chuck  


11:00 am 7 New Business  ALL  


 7.1 2015 Conference  Paul  


 7.2 TBA    


11:30 am 8 Link to Membership Discussion   


12:00 pm  Lunch    


12:30 pm 9 Learning Opportunities Discussion   


1:45 pm 10 Calendar Review  Information   


  -International CR Day: 16 October 2014 


-ADRIC Conference Montreal: 23, 24 October 2014 
   


2:00 pm 11 Next Board of Directors Meetings  Information   


  -26, 27 September 2014 (CGY) Strategic Plan Review 


-28, 29 November 2014 (EDM) Budget and ED Review  
   


NLT  2.30 pm 12 Termination/Adjournment  Wendy  


 


Residual issues: 


A. MoU with Hekima Institute of Peace Studies and International Relations, Kenya (Agenda item 
5.1 from April, 2014) 


B. Governance Committee to rewrite Board Policies 
C.   








Board of Directors Meeting April 5, 2014 Approved      Page 1 of 13 
 


 


ADRIA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 


SATURDAY APRIL 5, 2014 


OFFICES OF DAVIS LLP - CALGARY 


Attending: Jim Bancroft, Q.C.; Joanne Munro, C. Med; Wendy Hassen, C. Med; Dolores 


Herman, Q. Med; Deborah Howes, C. Arb; Stan Galbraith, C. Med; Barrie Marshall, Q.C.; Mike 


Hokanson, LLB; Chuck Smith, Q. Med; Paul Conway  


Regrets: Don Goodfellow, Q.C. 


 


MEETING COMMENCES: 8:38 a.m., April 5, 2014 


 


1.0 Welcome 


The President, Jim Bancroft, welcomed the other Board Members, and the new Executive 


Director, Paul Conway, to the meeting.  


Mr. Bancroft further offered congratulations to Mr. Conway on his appointment as Executive 


Director,  


1.1 Review of Agenda Items and Addition of Any Items 


At the suggestion of Deborah Howes, it was agreed that agenda items 3.1, 3.2, 4.5, and 4.6 


would be dealt with collectively as part of the report of the Governance Committee. 


Further, at the suggestion of Wendy Hassen, it was agreed that there would be a review of 


ADRIA's cheque signing procedures with a view to adopting a more streamlined process in this 


regard.  This item was added to agenda item 4.1.1, Treasurers Report.  


 


2.0 Minutes of Previous Meetings 


The President pointed out that there were typographical errors (a missing "A" in the fourth 


bulleted item at page 4 and a missing "i" in the "in" under the heading "Board Motion" at page 8) 


in the minutes of January 18, 2014. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


Moved by Wendy Hassen, and seconded by Dolores Herman, to approve the minutes of the 


meetings of December 18/19, 2013, January 18, 2014 (as amended), and January 29, 2014.  


Approved unanimously.  







Board of Directors Meeting April 5, 2014 Approved      Page 2 of 13 
 


 


3.0 Actions Arising from Previous Minutes (Old Business) 


Agenda Items 3.1, 3.2, 4.5, and 4.6 Deborah Howes, Chair of the Governance Committee, 


delivered her report attached to these minutes.  Ms Howes summarized the recommended actions 


for the board, set out at page 1 of the report, and the ongoing initiatives of the Committees, set 


out at page 2.  She further advised that there were two further items the Board has underway, 


namely, (6) the need for an Executive Committee and (7) an evaluation of whether the regional 


designations committees are committees of the Board. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Deborah Howes, and seconded by Joanne Munro, to approve the nominating 


committee comprised of Deborah Howes, Paul Conway, and Michael Hokanson  Approved 


unanimously. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Deborah Howes, and seconded by Dolores Herman, to approve the 


recommendations about the conduct of meetings (attached to the Governance Committee 


Report). Approved unanimously. 


Board members agreed respecting the value of "brainstorming" (i.e. open discussions during a 


suspension of Roberts Rules of Order) provided that parameters or guidelines were set to ensure 


that these brainstorming sessions do not otherwise disrupt the schedule of the meetings.   


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Deborah Howes, and seconded by Wendy Hassen, to authorize the Governance 


Committee to rewrite the Board Policies, within 1 "Board" year, with a goal of using language 


that promotes the goals and values of ADRIA and provides clarity to the relationship, goals, and 


policies of the organization (language slightly modified from Governance Committee Report).  


Approved unanimously. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


Any comments on the rewritten Board Policies to be provided by other Board members to the 


Governance Committee. 







Board of Directors Meeting April 5, 2014 Approved      Page 3 of 13 
 


 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Deborah Howes, and seconded by Joanne Munro, to implement an annual Board 


calendar from the AGM 2014 forward, in the format attached to the Governance Committee 


Report.  Approved unanimously.   


The Board members agreed that the format of the calendar would be of assistance to Board 


members, committees, and candidates for positions, in terms of setting their schedules.  It was 


further agreed that it may also be helpful to add to the calendar "Q1" from the following year 


given the value of planning 18 months into the future.   


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Deborah Howes, and seconded by Joanne Munro, to approve the additional 


by-law changes for a presentation to the members at the AGM (note: ADRIC director by-laws 


having already been approved) – see by-law changes at pages 1 and 2 of attached Governance 


Committee Report.  Approved unanimously.  


 


3.2 Complaints Policy/Dispute Resolution (Agenda Item 4.3 from November 25, 2013, 


Meeting) 


This Agenda Item was tabled to the next Board of Directors meeting.   


 


4.5 Nominating Committee (Board Member terms).  


The biographical sketches of the three candidates nominated by the Nominating Committee, 


namely, Joanne Munro, Jeffery Jessamine, and Angela Boyes (attached to these minutes), were 


reviewed. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Deborah Howes, and seconded by Dolores Herman, that the board accept the 


following nominations for election as Elected Directors under by-law 4.4 and ask the Executive 


Director to send these nominations to each full member at least 45 days before the AGM as part 


of the nomination process: 


 3 year term 







Board of Directors Meeting April 5, 2014 Approved      Page 4 of 13 
 


 


1 Joanne Munro, Mediator and Educator, Edmonton 


2 Angela Boyes, Mediator, Fort MacMurray 


3 Jeff Jessamine, Arbitrator, Edmonton 


 


Approved unanimously (Joanne Munro abstaining). 


 


Deborah Howes also reported that the Governance Committee is working on the agenda for the 


board orientation meeting in June and urged everyone to attend that meeting.  She further 


reminded the board that she is stepping off the Governance Committee unless she is asked to stay 


on in that regard.  She further expressed her willingness to do so.  This is a matter to be 


addressed by the new board.  


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Deborah Howes, and seconded by Stan Galbraith, that the Board accept the 


following nominations for election as National Director under the ADRIC by-laws and ask the 


ED to send this nomination to each full member at least 45 days for the AGM as part of the 


nomination process: Charles Smith, mediator, Fort McMurray.  Approved unanimously (Chuck 


Smith abstaining). 


 


DISCUSSION: 


Dolores Herman raised the issue as to whether the term of the ADRIC director should be decided 


by ADRIA as opposed to the by-laws of ADRIC given the value of ADRIA preserving its 


autonomy in such matters.  Chuck Smith pointed out the value of continuity to the conduct of 


ADRIC business affairs served by the multi year terms contemplated by the ADRIC by-laws.  


Deborah Howes indicated that she has requested a copy of the ADRIC by-laws with  view to 


obtaining the job description and requirements of the ADRIC director.   


 


BOARD MOTION 


It is moved by Deborah Howes, and seconded by Stan Galbraith, that ,under by-Law 4.6.11, the 


board appoint Dolores Herman and Jim Bancroft as scrutineers for the 2014 election of directors.  


Approved unanimously (Dolores Herman and Jim Bancroft abstaining).  







Board of Directors Meeting April 5, 2014 Approved      Page 5 of 13 
 


 


 


 


3.3 ADRIC Code of Ethics and Conduct (agenda item 3.1 from January 18, 2014 meeting)  


Chuck Smith pointed out that the current Code of Ethics applies only to Chartered Mediators and 


Qualified Mediators and not to either Chartered Arbitrators or Qualified Arbitrators. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Deborah Howes, and seconded by Dolores Herman, to lift Stan Galbraith's motion 


(Agenda Item 3.1 from January 18, 2014 meeting minutes) from the table for discussion.  


Approved unanimously. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Stan Galbraith and seconded by Deborah Howes that ADRIA request ADRIC to 


update its Code of Ethics and Conduct for its membership.  Approved unanimously. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The President to advise ADRIC that this motion has been passed and that Chuck Smith further 


agrees to raise the matter at the April 23 ADRIC Board meeting. 


President advised the Board that there would be a round table conference call between the 


regional presidents and the ADRIC Board President on the 29th of April at which time there 


would be a discussion of various matters of common interest to these bodies.  Further advised 


that it is the intent of ADRIC to convene such conference calls on a quarterly basis. 


 


3.4.1/3.4/2 Terms of Reference:  Regional Chartered Mediator Accreditation Committee and 


Regional Chartered Arbitrator Accreditation Committee  


Deborah Howes reported that these were going to be looked at and recommendations made – 


tabled to the next meeting 


 


3.5 Q. Med and C. Med Definitions 


3.5.1 Designations and Review Motions 


 







Board of Directors Meeting April 5, 2014 Approved      Page 6 of 13 
 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Dolores Herman, and seconded by Deborah Howes, that the ADRIA board of 


directors, through its national director, Chuck Smith, ask the ADRIC Board of Directors to have 


removed the words "or after" from the "III Skills Assessment, Part A" of the ADRIC document 


Principles, Criteria, Protocol, Competencies for the designation Chartered Mediator September 


2011.  Approved unanimously.  (See discussion set out in attachment to these minutes)  


 


BOARD MOTION 


It is moved by Dolores Herman, and seconded by Stan Galbraith, that the ADRIA board of 


directors replace the length of time a formal mediation assessment can be used as part of a C. 


Med application to two years from three years.  Discussion of this item reflected in the 


attachment to these minutes.  Approved unanimously. 


Joanne Munro advised that the information booklet for the C. Med and Q. Med designations had 


been updated in accordance with the January 18 Meeting Minutes. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


This item also to be included in the letter to be sent by the President to ADRIC. 


Mike Hokanson recommended a similar examination of the process respecting the C. Med and C. 


Arb  designations. 


 


3.6 AAMS/ADRIA Relations (Agenda Item 4.4 from the November 25, 2013 Board 


Meeting) 


Mike Hokanson reminded the board that the previous Draft Memorandum of Understanding 


between AAMS and ADRIA was considered to be too formal and legalistic although it was 


recognized that there needed to be a statement identifying the parameters of the relationship.  He 


advised that he and Eric McAvity had had discussions in this regard and had exchanged drafts, 


the latest version of which is attached to these minutes.  Paul Conway and Barrie Marshall 


suggested the deletion of the words "despite their differences".  It was also suggested that there 


be a brief introductory explanation of the historical evolution of AAMS and ADRIA.   


 


ACTION ITEM 







Board of Directors Meeting April 5, 2014 Approved      Page 7 of 13 
 


 


Mike Hokanson and Eric McAvity to finalize the language for this Memorandum of 


Understanding and put it on the agenda for the next meeting. 


 


3.7 Directors and Officers Insurance (from Agenda Item 4.7 from the November 25, 2013 


Board Meeting) 


The ED reported that AON's representative, Katherine Tyssen had confirmed that instructors and 


coaches would be covered under ADRIA's commercial liability insurance (see attachment to 


these minutes).   


 


ACTION ITEM 


The ED to follow up on obtaining or confirming coverage for coaches and instructors while they 


are providing training to our members.  


 


3.8  ED Report on New Operational Structure (Agenda Item 4.5 from November 25, 2013 


Meeting) 


Dealt with as part of the ED's report, Agenda Item 4.4. 


 


3.9 Privacy Legislation 


The ED reported that ADRIC has a National Privacy Policy and that this needs to be put up on 


ADRIA's website.  He further reported that measures have been taken to ensure that the 


requirements of the National Privacy Policy are being observed. 


 


ACTION ITEM 


The ED to contact the office of the Privacy Commissioner to arrange for the Privacy 


Commissioner to provide an informational session or sessions to the staff of ADRIA.  


 


ACTION ITEM 


A draft policy to be available for Board review and approval at the June Board meeting. 


 


3.10 ADRIC Administration Policy for NGS Programs (Agenda Item 3.7 from January 18 


Board meeting) 







Board of Directors Meeting April 5, 2014 Approved      Page 8 of 13 
 


 


See attachments 3.10.1, 3.10.2, and 3.10.3  


 


 


3.11 ADRIC Board Minutes February 20, March 20 (ADRIC Board teleconference Meeting 


April 24th) 


Chuck Smith reported that there were no ADRIC Board meetings on either the 20th of February 


or the 20th of March and that the last ADRIC Board meeting was on the 24th/25th of January, 


2014.  The minutes of the ADRIC Board of Directors meeting on those dates are attached to 


these minutes.   


Mr. Smith advised that, respecting 9a in his report, that the ED would be serving as a member of 


this committee.  Respecting 9C in his report he indicated that, respecting the various conferences 


held by ADRIC, money had been made in the major centers but not in the smaller centers.  The 


next meeting would be held on the 23rd and 24th of October in Montreal.  Respecting Item 14 in 


his report  Mr. Smith advised that the $30,000 in marketing costs had been designated by ADRIC 


and that some of this money could well be applied to market the Q. and C. designations. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


Chuck Smith to raise with ADRIC at the next ADRIC meeting the possible use of some of the 


marketing budget to market the Q. and C. designations. 


 


3.12 Strategic Plan promulgated by "On Board" (Deferred) 


Wendy Hassen reported that the last edition of "On Board" did not deal with strategic planning 


but it would be dealt with in the next "On Board".   


 


3.13 Dashboard 


Tabled to next meeting. 


 


3.14 Arbitration Designation Committee (Agenda Item 4.2.1 from January 18, 2014 meeting) 


Barrie Marshall reported that he had had his discussion with the Chair of the C. Arb. 


Designations Committee, John Welbourn and that the content of that discussion is reflected in  


his letter of the 4th of March, 2014 attached to these minutes.  







Board of Directors Meeting April 5, 2014 Approved      Page 9 of 13 
 


 


 


3.15 Replacement of Jim Willson in Arbitration and Mediation Designation Committees 


Tabled to next meeting. 


 


4.0 Reports 


4.1 Treasurer's Report 


Mike Hokanson summarized the content of his report attached to these minutes.  


Mike Hokanson also spoke to the need for a more comprehensive and effective policy regarding 


cheque runs and payments.  In this regard, Deborah Howes reported on her experience with 


another board and how that board coped with the logistical difficulties, unnecessary "red tape", 


and added expenses associated with the requirement for original signatures.  She pointed out the 


utility of permitting the ED to process payment for accounts payable for payments which 


ADRIA is contractually bound to make or expense submissions which are otherwise compliant 


with expense policy provided a cover sheet summarizing the cheques going out is sent for 


approval by the treasurer for audit purposes. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It was moved by Mike Hokanson, and seconded by Wendy Hassen, that the Board approve the 


following Policy statement: The ED is able to process payment for accounts payable without 


requiring individual invoice approval where: 


- the board has approved a contract 


-  the board has entered into a contract for operating standard services (eg. utilities, 


phone, garbage etc.) 


- the expense falls under a Board approved policy (eg. travel expenses) 


Approved unanimously. 


 


ACTION ITEM 


ED and staff to move forward with discussions with the accountant respecting the 


implementation of operational matters consistent with the above new policy.  







Board of Directors Meeting April 5, 2014 Approved      Page 10 of 13 
 


 


The ED also advised that he and the treasurer recognized the need for a better presentation of 


financial information to the Board (eg. pie charts need to have a more specific breakdown of the 


information presented) and would do so in the future. 


 


 


 


4.2 ADRIA Search and Appoint Fee Schedule Agenda Items 4.2 and 4.2.2 from January 18 


2014 Meeting) 


Discussions between the ED and Mary Anne Harnick, the ED of ADRIC, are reflected in the 


exchange of emails attached to these meeting minutes.   


 


ACTION ITEM 


ED to go back to Ms. Harnick and advise her that it is the Board's view that the ED (Mr. 


Conway) be the representative for Alberta.  


 


4.3 2014 Conference/AGM  


Dealt with as Agenda Item 7.1 


The agenda and notification respecting the 2014 AGM is attached to these minutes.  


 


4.4 ED report  


The Executive Directors report is attached to these minutes.  Respecting membership, the ED 


reported that he would like to be providing better information respecting a breakdown of 


membership by area.   Deborah Howes suggested that a breakdown by designation would also be 


helpful.  Wendy Hassen also suggested inclusion of information with respect to retention rates.  


 


ACTION ITEMS 


ED to provide bar charts in addition to pie chart information and, further, will attempt to provide 


the type of information requested by Ms. Howes and Ms. Hassen.  The ED will also adopt the 


policy of soliciting members who renew their memberships as to why they have renewed and 


inquiring as to whether there is anything ADRIA could be doing to better service their needs.   


 







Board of Directors Meeting April 5, 2014 Approved      Page 11 of 13 
 


 


4.6 Results of the Board's Self Evaluation Survey  


Dolores Herman presented the tabulated results of the 2014 Board Self Evaluation and it 


specifically identified those areas requiring board attention (the tabulated results are attached to 


these minutes with those areas requiring attention).   Ms. Herman also spoke about the 


limitations of the survey program which she used and suggested use of either Survey Monkey or 


an alternate surveyed program in the future.  Mike Hokanson spoke about the fact that only 7 of 


10 board members responded and stressed the importance of full participation in such surveys. 


 


Ms. Herman also requested that, if any board members have suggestions with respect to further 


or alternative survey questions she would be pleased to consider them for future surveys.  


 


5.0 New Business 


5.1 Memorandum of Understanding with Hekima Institute of Peace Studies and International 


Relations, Kenya  


The ED reported that this will be discussed with ADRIC.  Tabled to next meeting. 


 


5.2 Court Mediation Fees  


An extensive discussion took place with respect to concerns expressed to the President and Vice 


President by ADR members from Grande Prairie with respect to the $75 fee being paid to 


mediators participating in the Alberta Justice Provincial Court Mediation Program. 


The question raised for discussion was: Is it properly the business of ADRIA to be advocating to 


governmental authorities or to any group respecting compensation for mediators (our ADR 


profession) in order to fulfill our Vision, Mission and Values? 


Ideas shared in “Brainstorm” session: 


 This is related to the value of Designations (CMed/ARb, QMed/ARb) 


 The Provincial Government is currently evaluating the Provincial Court Mediation 


Process ADRIA should have a role in making specific recommendations – be at the table 


 Business opportunities for ADRIA (rosters) 


 Influence an increased profile/value of the profession 


 What are other regions doing? 


 Reform initiatives in Family Justice (and in other areas of government) underway 







Board of Directors Meeting April 5, 2014 Approved      Page 12 of 13 
 


 


 Do we raise the question around lobby to be a regulated profession? 


 We need to consider that there are individuals who are prepared to do these mediations 


gratuitously.   


The Board agreed that promoting the value of mediation and, by inference, remuneration for 


such services, is an area in which ADRIA needs to be involved in order to fulfill ADRIA’s 


vision, mission and values. 


 


The following Actions were suggested: 


1. ADRIA needs to be actively involved in the review and revamping of the Provincial 


Court Mediation Process 


2. Strike an ADRIA committee to: 


 Conduct research about mediation compensation and pro-bono work including 


contacting other professional organizations to determine their practices 


 Prepare a white paper for discussion about the matter 


 Engage ADRIA members in discussion and obtain their input 


 Provide the Board with a final report 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Deborah Howes seconded by Stan Galbraith that the ED be appointed to liaise 


with the Government of Alberta to explore opportunities for ADRIA in the Government of 


Alberta's review of the dispute resolution processes of Alberta Justice.  Approved unanimously. 


 


ACTION ITEM 


The ED to speak with and obtain the input of AAMS and any other individuals as he sees fit with 


respect to the above.  


 


ACTION ITEM 


Wendy Hassen and Joanne Munro to develop a terms of reference to be circulated for the 


committee to study compensatory and pro bono mediation work.  Joanne Munro and Wendy 


Hassen have agreed to serve on this committee.  An invitation is to be extended at the AGM to 


the membership for further participation on this committee.   







Board of Directors Meeting April 5, 2014 Approved      Page 13 of 13 
 


 


 


5.3  Future "On Board" Issues 


Wendy and Paul will develop an ON BOARD communicating the Strategic Plan and seeking 


volunteers for the committee – to go out in a few weeks. 


 


6.0 Other Items 


6.1 There were no other items 


 


7.0 Board Calendar Review 


7.1 AGM and Conference  


May 22, 23 Board of Directors June 20, 21 Board of Directors September 26, 27 Deborah Howes 


reminded the Board that By-Law 3.1 sets out what is to be covered.:  


- Reports from the President, ED, and Treasurer - a common report to be prepared 


in this regard and delivered by the President 


- Auditors' report 


- Elections and announcements 


 


ACTION ITEM 


A PowerPoint presentation to be prepared showing, for example, persons obtaining their Q and C 


Designations as well as those persons having participated in the various education programs.  


 


MEETING ADJOURNED: 2:10 p.m., April 5, 2014 








4.1.1 
From: Paul Conway  


Sent: June-20-14 7:20 AM 


To: Wendy Hassen; Michael Hokanson 
Subject: RE: 2nd Draft MOU 


 
These are the three changes (highlighted) that I would propose to our Board, for endorsement and onward 
conveyance to AAMS. 
 
Note that the first highlighted change (para 2) is the deletion of “Despite their differences, “ 
The second recommended change simply avoids the duplicate use of the word “endeavor” within the same 
sentence. 
The third suggests that both board and staff members will work to implement the MOU. 
 
The original MOU can be viewed on BoardSuite (April 2014 meeting) 


 
Paul Conway | Executive Director  


ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA) 


Room CE 223A - Ralph King Athletic Centre 
Concordia University Campus 
Corner of 112th Ave & 73rd Street 
Mailing address: 
7128 Ada Boulevard, Edmonton AB T5B 4E4 
ph. (780) 433-4881 or 1-800-232-7214 ext. 111 
fax. (780) 433-9024            www.adralberta.com 
 
ADRIA has engaged a dedicated team of part-time staff, so 
calls and e-mails are usually returned within 2 business days. 
Calls & visits are best accomodated weekdays from 10am-2pm. 
 


 
From: Paul Conway  
Sent: June-19-14 6:42 PM 


To: Wendy Hassen 
Subject: FW: 2nd Draft MOU 


 
Wendy – I meant to send this to you earlier today. 


 
Paul Conway | Executive Director  


ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA) 


Room CE 223A - Ralph King Athletic Centre 
Concordia University Campus 
Corner of 112th Ave & 73rd Street 
Mailing address: 
7128 Ada Boulevard, Edmonton AB T5B 4E4 
ph. (780) 433-4881 or 1-800-232-7214 ext. 111 
fax. (780) 433-9024            www.adralberta.com 
 
ADRIA has engaged a dedicated team of part-time staff, so 
calls and e-mails are usually returned within 2 business days. 
Calls & visits are best accomodated weekdays from 10am-2pm. 
 


 
From: Michael Hokanson [mailto:mjmhokanson@bryanco-cgy.com]  


Sent: June-19-14 11:19 AM 
To: Paul Conway 


Subject: RE: 2nd Draft 


 



http://www.adralberta.com/

http://www.adralberta.com/

mailto:mjmhokanson@bryanco-cgy.com





Sounds good to me.  Just tell me what number to call and when.  There isn’t much point in trying to work a skype 
conference in and it is far more likely that we will have technical issues. 
 
Thanks. 
 
Mike. 
 


 


DIR   403.261.3331     EMAIL  mjmhokanson@bryanco-cgy.com 
FAX  403.269.9304     WEB     www.bryanco.com 


#320, 903 - 8th Ave. S.W., Calgary, AB T2P 0P7  
 
This email contains information that is confidential and may be legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you are 


strictly prohibited from disclosing, distributing, or reproducing this message. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify 
the sender immediately by reply email and delete this message and any copies from your system. 


 
From: Paul Conway [mailto:paul@adralberta.com]  


Sent: June-19-14 11:18 AM 
To: Michael Hokanson 


Cc: Wendy Hassen 
Subject: RE: 2nd Draft 


 
We’ll miss you Mike, and I’ll be in touch regarding dial in.  Unfortuantely our “professional” teleconferencing 
capabilities will not be installed in the classroom until next Tuesday, but we can try the Skype option or just google 
phone you. 
 
Based on the exchange below, I suggest we just make the changes, sign it, and send it back to them.   Thoughts? 
 


Paul Conway | Executive Director  


ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA) 


Room CE 223A - Ralph King Athletic Centre 
Concordia University Campus 
Corner of 112th Ave & 73rd Street 
Mailing address: 
7128 Ada Boulevard, Edmonton AB T5B 4E4 
ph. (780) 433-4881 or 1-800-232-7214 ext. 111 
fax. (780) 433-9024            www.adralberta.com 
 
ADRIA has engaged a dedicated team of part-time staff, so 
calls and e-mails are usually returned within 2 business days. 
Calls & visits are best accomodated weekdays from 10am-2pm. 
 


 
From: Michael Hokanson [mailto:mjmhokanson@bryanco-cgy.com]  
Sent: June-19-14 8:56 AM 


To: Paul Conway 
Subject: FW: 2nd Draft 


 
Paul, 
Here’s his reply to the second draft.  I think we can consider it and decide if it works for us and then send it back to 
them.  I think I sent you what I had forwarded as the second draft earlier this week. 
 
I won’t be able to make it this weekend.  Let me know what time to call on Friday night or what skype address to 
call into.  Mine is mjmhokanson. 
 



mailto:mjmhokanson@bryanco-cgy.com

http://www.bryanco.com/

mailto:paul@adralberta.com

http://www.adralberta.com/

mailto:mjmhokanson@bryanco-cgy.com





Mike 


 


 


DIR   403.261.3331     EMAIL  mjmhokanson@bryanco-cgy.com 
FAX  403.269.9304     WEB     www.bryanco.com 


#320, 903 - 8th Ave. S.W., Calgary, AB T2P 0P7  
 
This email contains information that is confidential and may be legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you are 


strictly prohibited from disclosing, distributing, or reproducing this message. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify 


the sender immediately by reply email and delete this message and any copies from your system. 


 
From: Eric O. McAvity [mailto:ericmcavity@telus.net]  
Sent: June-18-14 9:31 PM 


To: Michael Hokanson 
Subject: RE: 2nd Draft 


 
Hi Mike, 
 
I have  had some positive feed back from my Board  for support for the draft previously sent to you. Regarding the 
suggested revision (to eliminate the “notwithstanding” part of the draft), I am somewhat ambivalent about this: I 
did not consider it to be a negative statement, however, I think restating this phrase in the positive would work 
well and I would recommend this minor revision to the draft to our Board. Do you want to suggest  wording that 
would work for your Board  this weekend and then get back to me: I think we should finalize the draft and with 
some luck, have our respective Boards adopt the same as part of this mutual understanding. Alternatively, I could 
recommend elimination of the “notwithstanding” phrase, but still feel that the unique natures of each organization 
needs to be effectively, and positively reflected in the MOU. 
 
Let me know what you think.  
 
Thanks Mike. 
 
Eric. 


 
From: Michael Hokanson [mailto:mjmhokanson@bryanco-cgy.com]  


Sent: Wednesday, June 18, 2014 2:38 PM 
To: 'Eric O. McAvity' 


Subject: FW: 2nd Draft 


 
Eric, 
I haven’t heard back from you on this second draft.  Does this work?  We have an ADRIA meeting this weekend. 
 
Mike 


 


 


DIR   403.261.3331     EMAIL  mjmhokanson@bryanco-cgy.com 
FAX  403.269.9304     WEB     www.bryanco.com 


#320, 903 - 8th Ave. S.W., Calgary, AB T2P 0P7  
 
This email contains information that is confidential and may be legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you are 


strictly prohibited from disclosing, distributing, or reproducing this message. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify 


the sender immediately by reply email and delete this message and any copies from your system. 


 



mailto:mjmhokanson@bryanco-cgy.com

http://www.bryanco.com/

mailto:ericmcavity@telus.net

mailto:mjmhokanson@bryanco-cgy.com

mailto:mjmhokanson@bryanco-cgy.com

http://www.bryanco.com/





From: Michael Hokanson  
Sent: May-26-14 8:15 AM 


To: 'Eric O. McAvity' 


Subject: RE: 2nd Draft 


 
Thanks Eric.  One change that was suggested on our end was taking out the line that said “notwithstanding” 
because of the negative language.  We can re-state it in the positive if need be or just leave it with the line taken 
out. 
 
Mike 
 


 


DIR   403.261.3331     EMAIL  mjmhokanson@bryanco-cgy.com 
FAX  403.269.9304     WEB     www.bryanco.com 


#320, 903 - 8th Ave. S.W., Calgary, AB T2P 0P7  
 
This email contains information that is confidential and may be legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you are 


strictly prohibited from disclosing, distributing, or reproducing this message. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify 


the sender immediately by reply email and delete this message and any copies from your system. 


 
From: Eric O. McAvity [mailto:ericmcavity@telus.net]  


Sent: May-22-14 4:36 PM 


To: Michael Hokanson 
Subject:  


 
Hi Michael, 
 
I have not had a lot of feed back regarding the draft MOU but have made some modest changes,  after consulting 
with our ED Pete Desroches, and which I am now forwarding to you for comment. I will also circulate this to our 
Board members for comment and see when we are. This will entail Jim  Bancroft and Don Goodfellow receiving the 
same document. Nevertheless, would you let me know when you hope to be able to raise the matter with your 
Board and what further direction you receive. I am of the view at this point that the simplicity of the document 
serves to underscore an understanding that both our organizations share some common history but each now 
continue to have unique missions,…who’s ongoing co-operation in any future endeavors can best be served with 
this understanding in mind. 
 
Looking forward to hearing from you when you have the chance. 
 
Regards, 
 
Eric McAvity. 


 



mailto:mjmhokanson@bryanco-cgy.com

http://www.bryanco.com/

mailto:ericmcavity@telus.net






 


C0190836.v1 


MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 


BETWEEN  


ALBERTA ARBITRATION & MEDIATION SOCIETY (AAMS)  


AND  


ADR INSTITUTE OF ALBERTA (ADRIA)  


 


AAMS and ADRIA are two separate organizations with distinct goals, mission 
statements, strategic plans, and directions for the future. 
 
AAMS and ADRIA each recognize that both entities have an interest in the promotion of 
the benefits and use of mediation, arbitration and other forms of dispute resolution 
whenever and wherever possible, especially throughout the province of Alberta. 
 
Where possible, while maintaining the integrity of each institution’s mission, vision, 
mandate and regulatory restrictions, AAMS and ADRIA will strive to work together to 
further any endeavor that is to their mutual benefit. 
 
AAMS and ADRIA agree to encourage their respective board and staff members to 
work cooperatively, where possible, in providing assistance to both institutions as 
appropriate and identifying opportunities and events that would be beneficial to either or 
both institutions.  
 
EXECUTED as of the ____day of ___________, 2014: 
 
 
Alberta Arbitration & Mediation Society           ADR Institute of Alberta 
  
 
By:  _______________________                   By:______________________ 








From: Katherine Tyssen [katherine.tyssen@aon.ca] 


Sent: Thursday, January 30, 2014 8:10 AM 


To: Erika Deines 


Subject: RE: ADR Institute of Alberta - liability insurance - Policy No. 


RAP2807396 


Attachments: 2013 Location Exposure.doc 


  


Hi Erika 


  


How are you today? 


  


Please note that the instructors would be covered under the above policy as they are performing 


operations by ADR. 


  


If you are adding a Calgary location, please advise the exact address, any contents/computer equipment, 


etc., so I can have this added to your policy. 


Please note that even if there is no contents/equipment, etc. I will still need the complete address of the 


Calgary location so I can advise underwriters and have the Liability Insurance extended to cover this 


location.   


  


Please complete the attached and forward it back to me as soon as possible. 


  


Thanks and I look forward to hearing from you at your earliest. 


  


Have a great day. 


  


Kathy 


  
Kathy Tyssen | Aon Reed Stenhouse Inc. 
Commercial Business Unit | Account Manager 
Suite 900, 10025-102A Avenue 
Edmonton, AB T5J 0Y2 
Tel: 780.423.9895 | Fax: 780.423.9876 
Toll Free: 1-800-675-6173 
katherine.tyssen@aon.ca 
www.aon.ca 
We are presently seeking new opportunities to be of service to the business/commercial sector and would really appreciate any referrals you may 


send our way. 
Thank you for your support 
Protect the environmental.  Print this e-mail only if absolutely necessary 
  
From: Erika Deines [mailto:edexecutivedirector@adralberta.com]  


Sent: Tuesday, January 28, 2014 5:50 PM 


To: Katherine Tyssen 
Subject: RE: ADR Institute of Alberta - liability insurance 
  
Hi Kathy, 


  


Thank you very much for the information you provided in your email below. The Board has been 


informed and they now have yet another request. Could you please let me know if our instructors are 


covered by our commercial liability insurance?  


  


We rent a classroom as part of our office rent and in Calgary, we are also starting an office and small 


classroom combo where our instructors (contractors with ADRIA) are teaching.  I am not sure about our 


Calgary office location… we are one of several lessees in the North Calgary Business Centre (NCBC) 


(starting Jan. 2014) but have a designated office and classroom (the Board room is our classroom).  


  


Thanks for your guidance and assistance in making sure we are covered appropriately. 


  



mailto:katherine.tyssen@aon.ca

http://www.aon.ca/

mailto:edexecutivedirector@adralberta.com





Warmly, 


  


Erika 


   


Erika Deines/ Executive Director 


 ADR Institute of Alberta 
Room CE223A 
7128 Ada Boulevard 
Ralph King Athletic Centre - Concordia University College 
Edmonton AB T5B 4E4 
ph. (780) 433-4881 ext 110 or 1-800-232-7214 ext 116 
fax. (780) 433-9024 
www.adralberta.com 
  
The ADRIA offices are staffed by a dedicated team of part-time staff and volunteers.  Every effort is made to return your 
calls and e-mails within 2-3 business days, and many answers are readily available on the website.   
Enquiries and in-person office visits are most easily accommodated weekdays between 10am and 2pm.  At all times, 
please send or leave detailed and clear messages to assist us in serving you professionally. 
  
VISION:  
ADRIA is the strongest and most vibrant Appropriate Dispute Resolution membership organization in Canada - recognized 
for advancing excellence in the field of ADR, its practice, and its professionals.  
  
MISSION: 
To provide leadership and services in appropriate dispute resolution (ADR) to our members by: Fostering excellence in 
negotiation, mediation, arbitration, and restorative practices; Supporting the viable practice of ADR in Alberta; Providing 
excellence in ADR professional development; Promoting the ethical use of ADR processes; Maintaining accreditation 
standards, accountability and designations for the ADR profession; Encouraging those practicing in ADR to join our 
organization. 
  


   
From: Katherine Tyssen [mailto:katherine.tyssen@aon.ca]  
Sent: Thursday, December 12, 2013 10:45 AM 


To: Erika Deines 
Subject: RE: ADR Institute of Alberta - liability insurance 


Importance: High 
  
Hi Erika 


  


How are you today? 


  


Please be advised that I spoke with the underwriter, and he has reconfirmed that contract employees are 


covered while performing operations for the Insured. 


  


Thanks and have a great day. 


  


Kathy 


  
Kathy Tyssen | Aon Reed Stenhouse Inc. 
Commercial Business Unit | Account Manager 
Suite 900, 10025-102A Avenue 
Edmonton, AB T5J 0Y2 
Tel: 780.423.9895 | Fax: 780.423.9876 
Toll Free: 1-800-675-6173 
katherine.tyssen@aon.ca 
www.aon.ca 
We are presently seeking new opportunities to be of service to the business/commercial sector and would really appreciate any referrals you may 


send our way. 
Thank you for your support 
Protect the environmental.  Print this e-mail only if absolutely necessary 
  
From: Erika Deines [mailto:edexecutivedirector@adralberta.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, December 11, 2013 3:46 PM 



http://www.adralberta.com/

mailto:katherine.tyssen@aon.ca

mailto:katherine.tyssen@aon.ca

http://www.aon.ca/

mailto:edexecutivedirector@adralberta.com





To: Katherine Tyssen 
Subject: ADR Institute of Alberta - liability insurance 
  
Hi Katherine, 


  


In our Renewal Application of August 30, 2013, I stated our employee count as 6 full time and 1 part time 


person. Since all but one staff are working on contract-employment (1 year terms), the Board of Directors 


has asked me to get confirmation in writing that our contract-employees are indeed covered by our 


insurance policy. Currently, we have 1 full-time employee (with benefit deductions), 1 part-time 


bookkeeper (no benefits), 3 contract-employees (21-25 hours per week), and 1 contract-employee (28 


hours). Additionally, we have project-related contractors who work between 8 and 28 hours a week, 


depending on the project they work on. They are not on a 1 year term contract but on 1 – 6 months 


contracts.  


  


All of the above people are engaged in the operations of ADR Institute, member services and professional 


development (i.e. membership applications, newsletters, annual directory, conference, managing rosters, 


financial reconciliation, organizing board meetings, and planning and organizing professional 


development courses/workshops). In summary, our business operations are, as reported, mediation, 


arbitration and member services. 


  


Could you please confirm in writing that your insurance coverage does cover our contract-employees and 


that your ‘independent contractor’ category applies to trades people who may carry their own liability 


insurance (i.e. painter, plumber, carpenter, etc.) and is different from the category “employee count”. 


  


If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at the address below.  


  


Thank you and I look forward to your correspondence. 


  


Warmly, 


  


Erika 


  


Erika Deines/ Executive Director 


 ADR Institute of Alberta 
Room CE223A 
7128 Ada Boulevard 
Ralph King Athletic Centre - Concordia University College 
Edmonton AB T5B 4E4 
ph. (780) 433-4881 ext 110 or 1-800-232-7214 ext 116 
fax. (780) 433-9024 
www.adralberta.com 
  
The ADRIA offices are staffed by a dedicated team of part-time staff and volunteers.  Every effort is made to return your 
calls and e-mails within 2-3 business days, and many answers are readily available on the website.   
Enquiries and in-person office visits are most easily accommodated weekdays between 10am and 2pm.  At all times, 
please send or leave detailed and clear messages to assist us in serving you professionally. 
  
VISION:  
ADRIA is the strongest and most vibrant Appropriate Dispute Resolution membership organization in Canada - recognized 
for advancing excellence in the field of ADR, its practice, and its professionals.  
  
MISSION: 
To provide leadership and services in appropriate dispute resolution (ADR) to our members by: Fostering excellence in 
negotiation, mediation, arbitration, and restorative practices; Supporting the viable practice of ADR in Alberta; Providing 
excellence in ADR professional development; Promoting the ethical use of ADR processes; Maintaining accreditation 
standards, accountability and designations for the ADR profession; Encouraging those practicing in ADR to join our 
organization. 
 
********************************************************************************** 


 
 



http://www.adralberta.com/






ADR Institute of Alberta  2014 DRAFT 


4.3.1 


ADR Institute of Alberta*  


Privacy Policy 


 


Accountability - We, at the ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA), recognize the 


importance of privacy. We have a professional and ethical obligation to keep 


confidential all information we receive within a business relationship subject to 


your instructions and applicable law. We manage your personal information in 


compliance with Alberta’s Personal Information Protection Act and will comply in 


certain circumstances with the federal Personal Information Protection and 


Electronic Documents Act, as required. We may periodically amend our privacy 


policy to update our commitment to you in accordance with current privacy laws. If 


you have any concerns about our privacy policy or how we have handled your 


personal information, contact:  


Paul Conway 


Edmonton, Alberta 


Phone: 780.433.4881 ext. 111 


Collection Purposes - Personal information is any information that identifies you. 


In Alberta, business contact information such as business phone number and office 


address (if not a home office) is not considered personal information. We follow 


prudent business practices in collecting, using and disclosing personal information 


while providing you with our services. ADRIA collects personal information to serve 


your reasonable business and related needs. We require this information to 


understand, access and assist you with your ongoing business needs and to ensure 


that information is up-to-date. 


Collection Methods - We collect information only by lawful and fair means. 


Whenever possible, we will collect personal information directly from you. 


Depending on the business services provided, with your consent, we may obtain 


relevant information from other reasonable sources.  


Consent – Personal information will only be collected, used and disclosed with your 


consent except as required or permitted by law. Your consent with respect to 


collection, use and disclosure may be in writing, verbal or implied as necessary to 


meet your business needs. For example, every time a new member joins ADRIA, a 


report is filed with the ADR Institute of Canada (ADRIC) if the application is for 


full membership with voting rights.  This is done for the protection of the member.  


Your consent to this disclosure is implied when you obtain full membership. 


Disclosure Without Consent - In certain circumstances, we may disclose your 


personal information without your consent. Such circumstances include legal 







ADR Institute of Alberta  2014 DRAFT 


compulsion or authorization and the necessity to respond to an emergency that 


threatens life, health or security of an individual or the public. Disclosure may also 


occur if it is necessary to establish or collect our fees or if the information is already 


publicly known. 


Use of Personal Information - We use personal information to provide business 


services and to administer our membership business. Unless you consent, we will 


not disclose or sell your personal or business contact information to any third party 


to enable them to market their products or services. When we release information 


about you, it is done to serve specific needs, in the course of providing business 


services. With your consent, we may provide information to our staff and agents for 


reasonable business purposes. We may also provide personal information to third 


parties providing services to ADRIA provided the third party agrees to comply with 


our privacy policy and any applicable legislation. 


Individual Access - You have the right to request a correction of the personal 


information that we hold about you. If during the course of our business 


relationship, any of your information changes, please inform us so that we can make 


the necessary changes. You may request access to the personal information we have 


about you and we will respond to this request in a timely fashion. This request must 


be in writing and we will charge a reasonable fee for retrieval and copying. By law, 


we must deny access when your file contains personal information on a third party 


and the information cannot be severed to maintain the third party’s privacy. We 


may also deny access if your information relates to existing or anticipated legal 


proceedings against you, including unpaid bills to ADRIA. If we deny your request 


for access or correction, we will explain why. In all cases, we will attempt to mediate 


a resolution if possible. 


Safeguards - In order to protect your personal information, we will not collect, use 


or disclose your personal information unless the purpose is identified or reasonably 


evident. ADRIA will keep your personal information only for as long as necessary to 


fulfill the stated purpose or as required by law. We will maintain your personal 


information as accurately as possible. In addition we will keep your personal 


information physically secure and protected by technological safeguards appropriate 


to the sensitivity of the information. 


 


The ADR Institute of Canada Privacy Policy is the core privacy policy for ADR 


Canada. ADR Canada includes the National office and six regional affiliates 


(Ontario, Maritimes, Manitoba, Saskatchewan, Alberta and British Columbia). 


The ADR Institute of Alberta Privacy Policy is a subset of the ADR Institute of 


Canada Privacy Policy and in the event of a discrepancy the ADR Canada policy 


supersedes ADRIA’s Privacy Policy. 


 


* ADRIA includes ADRIA and ADRIC 












 


ADR INSTITUTE OF CANADA  


PRIVACY POLICY 


1. PURPOSE 


The ADR Institute of Canada (“ADR Canada”) is federally incorporated, not-for-profit 
organization. 


It is consistent with the core values of ADR Canada, and thus constitutes the policy of ADR 
Canada, to protect the Personal Information of its employees, clients, customers and members 
and other individuals whose Personal Information it handles (collectively, “Individuals”).  ADR 
Canada recognizes that effective systems and measures to protect such Personal Information are 
important to safeguarding the interests of Individuals who share their information with ADR 
Canada.  The purpose of this privacy policy (the “Policy”) is to establish common rules to 
govern the collection, use and disclosure of Personal Information by ADR Canada, in a manner 
that balances an Individual’s right to privacy with the need of ADR Canada to collect, use or 
disclose Personal Information for purposes that a reasonable person would consider appropriate 
in the circumstances, in accordance with applicable privacy laws (“Privacy Laws”). 


In this Policy, ADR Canada includes the National office and six regional affiliates engaged in the 
development, promotion and administration of dispute resolution services in Canada, the 
provision of information and skill building tools and services for practitioners and users of ADR 
services, development and implementation of national standards, a code of ethics and complaint 
procedures for ADR professionals, training and trainers, national accreditation for mediator and 
arbitrators, course approval and training and special benefits to members.   


SCOPE 


Role of the Policy 


(a) This Policy is the core privacy policy for ADR Canada.   


(b) Attached as a schedule are the contact information for the Privacy Officer; a 
representative sampling of exceptions to the general principle that ADR Canada 
will not collect, use or disclose Personal Information without the knowledge and 
consent of the Individual; and the exception for publicly available information.  


Schedule “A”  Privacy Officer 


Schedule “B” Examples of Exceptions to Consent Requirement for 
Collection, Use and Disclosure 


Schedule “C” Publicly Available Information Exceptions  


 







- 2 - 


Other Scope Issues 


(c) ADR Canada will continue to review and revise the Policy from time to time to 
ensure that it is relevant and remains current with changing laws, regulations and 
technologies.   


(d) Individuals whose Personal Information has been provided to ADR Canada shall 
be able to address a challenge concerning compliance with the principles 
expressed herein to the Privacy Officer and their designate accountable for ADR 
Canada’s compliance with the Policy. 


(e) The Policy applies to Personal Information provided to ADR Canada that is 
collected, used, or disclosed by ADR Canada. 


(f) The Policy applies to the management of Personal Information in any form 
whether oral, electronic or written. 


(g) The Policy does not impose any limits on the collection, use or disclosure of: 


(i) the name, title, business address (not including business e-mail address 
which is considered Personal Information), or business telephone number, 
of any employee or official of any organization, to the extent that such 
information is collected, used or disclosed for the purpose of contacting an 
individual in that person’s capacity as an employee or official of ADR 
Canada or any other organization;  


(ii) publicly available information as set out in Schedule “C”. 


 


2. DEFINITIONS 


“Act” means the Personal Information Protection and Electronic Documents Act, S.C. 2000, 
c.5. 


“ADR Canada Website” means the website of the ADR Institute of Canada. 


“collection” - the act of gathering, acquiring, recording, or obtaining Personal Information from 
any source, including sources other than the Individual to whom the Personal Information 
belongs, by any means. 


“Consent” - voluntary agreement to the collection, use or disclosure of Personal Information for 
defined purposes.  Consent can be either express or implied and can be provided directly by the 
individual or by an authorized representative.  Express consent can be given orally, electronically 
or in writing, but is always unequivocal and does not require any inference on the part of ADR 
Canada.  Implied consent is consent that can reasonably be inferred from an individual’s action 
or inaction.  







- 3 - 


“disclosure” - making Personal Information available outside ADR Canada.  


“identified purposes”  - means the purposes identified to the individual whose Personal 
Information is used by ADR Canada. 


“Individual” - any person who directly or indirectly provides their Personal Information to ADR 
Canada  


“Personal Information” – means information about an identifiable Individual (other than the 
information described under Section 1(g) above), which therefore does not include information 
that cannot be associated with a specific individual. 


“Privacy Officer” - means the privacy officer of ADR Canada as set out in Schedule “A”. 


“Purposes” - means the purposes identified to the individual whose Personal Information is used 
by ADR Canada. 


“use” - the treatment, handling, management and retention of Personal Information. 


 


SUMMARY  - PRIVACY PRINCIPLES 


• 


• 


• 


• 


• 


• 


Accountability.  ADR Canada is responsible for Personal Information under its control 
and has designated a Privacy Officer who is accountable for assisting ADR Canada in 
being compliant with this policy and the Act. 


Identifying Purposes.  ADR Canada identifies the purposes for which it collects 
Personal Information at or before the time of collection from an Individual, and in any 
case, prior to use or disclosure of the Personal Information for the identified purposes.  


Consent.  The knowledge and Consent of the Individual are required for the collection, 
use, or disclosure of Personal Information, except where the collection, use or disclosure 
of Personal Information without such knowledge and Consent is permitted by law or a 
recognized authority.  In appropriate circumstances, Consent may be implied. 


Limiting collection. ADR Canada limits the collection of Personal Information to that 
which is necessary for the purposes that it has identified.  Such information is collected 
by fair and lawful means.  


Limiting Use, Disclosure and Retention.  Personal Information is not used or disclosed 
for purposes other than the identified purposes, except with the Consent of the Individual 
or as otherwise permitted by law.  Personal Information is retained only as long as is set 
out in ADR Canada’s retention policy. 


Accuracy.  ADR Canada keeps the Personal Information as accurate, complete, and up-
to-date as is necessary for the identified purposes. 







- 4 - 


• 


• 


• 


• 


Safeguards.  ADR Canada adopts security safeguards appropriate to the sensitivity of the 
Personal Information to protect such Personal Information. 


Openness.  ADR Canada makes readily available to Individuals specific information 
about its Policy, and other policies and practices relating to the management of Personal 
Information. 


Individual Access.  Upon written request, ADR Canada will inform an Individual of the 
existence, use, and disclosure of his or her Personal Information, will provide such 
Individual with access to that information, and will permit the Individual to challenge the 
accuracy and completeness of the Personal Information. 


Challenging Compliance.  An Individual shall be able to address a concern regarding 
ADR Canada’s compliance with the principles expressed herein to the ADR Canada 
Privacy Officer. 







- 5 - 


3.1   ADR CANADA’S ACCOUNTABILITY FOR COMPLIANCE  
 


Accountability.  ADR Canada is responsible for Personal Information under its possession or 
control, including any Personal Information transferred to third parties for processing.  ADR 
Canada has established policies and practices to give effect to this privacy statement and has 
designated a Chief Privacy Officer who is accountable for assisting ADR Canada in being 
compliant with this policy and the Act. 


 


(a) ADR Canada is responsible for Personal Information under its control and has 
designated one person as its Privacy Officer (see contact information in Schedule 
“A”), who is generally accountable and responsible for ADR Canada’s 
compliance with this Policy, and for ensuring that the Policy complies with the 
Act. 


(b) Comments and questions regarding this Policy or its administration should be 
forwarded to the Privacy Officer’s attention. 


(c) ADR Canada is responsible for Personal Information in its possession or custody, 
including information that has been transferred to a third party for processing.  In 
order to provide a comparable level of protection while a third party is processing 
the information, ADR Canada ensures that through contractual means, each non-
ADR Canada third party receiving such Personal Information is bound to protect 
such information. 


(d) The ADR Canada Privacy Officer will review on a periodic basis (and if 
necessary amend) this Policy, and review other issues in connection with same. 


(e) Other individuals within ADR Canada may be designated to act on behalf of the 
Privacy Officer from time to time. 


(f) All inquiries should be in writing and addressed to the Privacy Officer, as set out 
in Schedule “A”. 


(g) Individuals making a request in respect of Personal Information held by ADR 
Canada, or making any inquiry as to the procedure for making such request 
should be as specific as possible with respect to what information is requested. 







- 6 - 


3.2   IDENTIFYING PURPOSES FOR COLLECTION OF PERSONAL 
 INFORMATION  


 


Identifying Purposes.  ADR Canada identifies the purposes for which it collects Personal 
Information at or before the time of collection from an Individual, and in any case, prior to use or 
disclosure of the Personal Information for the identified purposes.   


See Schedule B, section 3.2 for exceptions to consent requirement for collection, use and 
disclosure. 


 


(a) ADR Canada identifies the purposes, through either direct explanation or use of 
other notification means for which it collects Personal Information at or before the 
time of collection from an Individual, and collects only that information necessary 
for such identified purposes. 


(i) determining and documenting an applicant’s eligibility for membership, 
certification, or inclusion on mailings;   


(ii) understanding, and administering products and services that meet member, 
client or customer ADR needs; 


(iii) processing any payments made by clients for ADR Canada products and 
services; collecting any amounts owing by members or clients under any 
goods or services transactions; and investigating, pursuing and 
adjudicating any collections and/or damages claims relating to members, 
clients or customers; 


(iv) communicating with members, clients or customers in connection with the 
foregoing purposes;  


(v) offering members, clients and customers new products and services that 
may be of interest to them (provided that members and clients have not 
opted out of receiving such offers); and 


(vi) investigating complaints. 


(b) When ADR Canada wishes to use or disclose the Personal Information for a 
purpose other than an identified purpose, it will identify the new purpose prior to 
such use or disclosure. The Individual whose Personal Information is at issue 
must consent before ADR Canada can use or disclose the information for this new 
purpose, unless such use or disclosure without consent is permitted by law. 


(c) When collecting Personal Information directly from an Individual, ADR Canada 
personnel explains the identified purposes to the applicable Individual.  







- 7 - 


(d) When collecting Personal Information, other than from an Individual, i.e. from a 
third party, and doing so without the direct consent of the Individual, ADR 
Canada shall: 


(i) provide the disclosing organization with sufficient information regarding 
the purpose of the collection to allow the disclosing organization to 
determine whether the disclosure would be in accordance with the Act; 
and 


(ii) obtain representation from the third party that it has obtained the consent 
of the Individual for the collection, use and disclosure of the Personal 
Information by ADR Canada for that purpose. 


(e) ADR Canada ensures that the purposes for which it collects Personal Information 
are only purposes that a reasonable person would consider appropriate in the 
circumstances. 
 







- 8 - 


3.3 OBTAINING CONSENT TO COLLECT, USE AND DISCLOSE PERSONAL 
 INFORMATION 


 


Obtaining Consent.  ADR Canada will make a reasonable effort to advise an individual as to 
how Personal Information will be used or communicated or disclosed by ADR Canada.  
Generally, ADR Canada will obtain an individual’s consent to the collection, use and 
communication or disclosure of Personal Information for the Purposes before or at the time it 
collects the information.  A member, client or customer’s consent may be express or implied, 
depending on the sensitivity of the information.   


 


(a) Subject to (b) below, the knowledge and Consent of the Individual are required 
for the collection, use, or disclosure of Personal Information by ADR Canada, 
except where the collection, use or disclosure of Personal Information without 
such knowledge and Consent is permitted or required by law.  In appropriate 
circumstances, Consent may be implied. 


(b) The Act sets out specific circumstances under which ADR Canada may collect, 
use, or disclose Personal Information without the knowledge or Consent of the 
Individual.  Schedule “B” sets out a representative sampling of those 
circumstances wherein ADR Canada may, without knowledge or Consent, collect, 
use, or disclose Personal Information. 


(c) ADR Canada uses reasonable efforts to ensure that Individuals are advised of the 
purposes for which their Personal Information will be used. For example, if 
Personal Information is collected in writing, the purposes will be identified on the 
application form, or if Personal Information is collected orally, such purposes will 
be listed on the script to be used by persons collecting Personal Information.  To 
make the Consent meaningful, the purposes are stated in such a manner that the 
Individual can reasonably understand how the Personal Information will be used 
or disclosed.  


(d) Typically, ADR Canada seeks Consent for the use or disclosure of information at 
the time of its collection. In certain circumstances, Consent for the use or 
disclosure may be sought after the information has been collected, but before it is 
so used or disclosed (for example, when ADR Canada wants to use Personal 
Information for a purpose not previously identified). 


(e) ADR Canada does not, as a condition of the supply of information or services, 
require an Individual to Consent to the collection, use, or disclosure of Personal 
Information beyond that required to fulfill the explicitly specified and legitimate 
identified purposes. 


(f) In determining the form of Consent, ADR Canada takes into account the 
sensitivity of the Personal Information involved. ADR Canada generally seeks 







- 9 - 


express Consent when the Personal Information is likely to be considered 
sensitive, and implied Consent when the information is less sensitive. 


(g) In obtaining Consent, ADR Canada also takes into account the reasonable 
expectations of the Individual. 


(h) ADR Canada may seek Consent in various ways, depending on the circumstances 
and the type of information collected, including, for example, using an application 
form and/or a check-off box, or collecting oral consent - in particular, when 
information is collected over the telephone. 


(i) An Individual may withdraw Consent at anytime, subject to legal or contractual 
restrictions and reasonable notice. ADR Canada will inform the Individual of the 
implications of such withdrawal.  For example, where an Individual withdraws 
Consent to the uses of their Personal Information, such withdrawal may result in 
ADR Canada being unable to market services to such Individual. 


(j) An individual may withdraw or vary his or her consent on reasonable notice to 
ADR Canada, subject to legal or contractual restrictions.  ADR Canada will 
generally be able to give effect to such withdrawal or variation on thirty (30) 
days’ notice, and will, if it has not already done so, advise the individual of the 
implications of his or her withdrawal or variation. 







- 10 - 


3.4  LIMITS ON THE COLLECTION OF PERSONAL INFORMATION   
 


Limiting collection.  ADR Canada limits the collection of Personal Information to that 
which is necessary for the purposes that it has identified.  Such information is collected by 
fair and lawful means.  ADR Canada will not collect Personal Information from any third 
party without an individual’s consent unless the collection is clearly in the individual’s 
interest and ADR Canada is unable to obtain consent in a timely way, or as otherwise 
permitted by law. 


 


 


(a) ADR Canada limits the collection of Personal Information to that which is 
necessary for the identified purposes. ADR Canada collects the Personal 
Information by fair and lawful means. 


(b) ADR Canada does not collect Personal Information at random without regard to 
an identified purpose or in a misleading manner.  Both the amount and the type of 
information collected is limited to that which is necessary to fulfill the identified 
purposes. ADR Canada specifies the type of information collected as part of its 
information-handling policies and practices. 







- 11 - 


3.5   LIMIT ON THE USE, COMMUNICATION OR DISCLOSURE AND 
 RETENTION OF PERSONAL INFORMATION   
 


Limits on the use, communication or disclosure and retention.  ADR Canada will only use, 
communicate or disclose and retain Personal Information for the purposes identified in this 
policy.  ADR Canada will identify any third parties to whom Personal Information will be 
communicated or disclosed at the time of collection and obtain an individual’s consent to such 
communication or disclosure.   


 


(a) ADR Canada will keep a record of each individual’s Personal Information in a 
file specific to him or her.  ADR Canada will use, communicate or disclose and 
retain Personal Information only for as long as is necessary to fulfil the purposes 
or as otherwise permitted or required by law.  ADR Canada has established 
minimum and maximum retention periods and procedures for retaining and 
destroying Personal Information. 


(b) ADR Canada does not use or disclose Personal Information for purposes other 
than those identified purposes for which it was collected, except with the Consent 
of the Individual or as necessary for the fulfillment of those purposes, or as 
permitted by applicable law. 


(c) Only ADR Canada personnel with an organizational “need-to-know”, or whose 
duties reasonably so require, in order to fulfill the identified purposes, are granted 
access to Personal Information.  


(d) ADR Canada keeps Personal Information only as long as it remains necessary or 
relevant for the identified purposes, or as required or permitted by law. 


(e) Where the Personal Information has been used to make a decision about an 
Individual, it will be retained long enough to allow the Individual access to the 
information for a reasonable period of time after the decision has been made, 
pursuant to the ADR Canada Document Retention Policy;  


(f) Where the Personal Information is the subject of a request from an Individual, it 
will be retained for as long as is necessary to allow the Individual to exhaust any 
recourse under the Act generally. 


(g) ADR Canada destroys or erases Personal Information that is no longer to be 
retained pursuant to (d), (e) and (f) above.  


 







- 12 - 


3.6   ACCURACY OF PERSONAL INFORMATION  
 
 


Accuracy.  ADR Canada will use reasonable efforts to keep Personal Information as accurate, 
complete and up-to-date as necessary for the purposes of its policy.  ADR Canada will not 
routinely update Personal Information unless necessary.  ADR Canada expects individuals from 
time to time, to update their Personal Information themselves, using the “Update Your Listing” 
feature of this Web site. 


 
 


(a) ADR Canada keeps Personal Information as accurate, complete, and up-to-date as 
is necessary for the identified Purposes. 


(b) Personal Information used by ADR Canada is kept accurate, complete, and as up-
to-date as possible to minimize the possibility that inappropriate information 
could be used to make a decision about the Individual.  To ensure the foregoing 
with respect to Personal Information, ADR Canada requires each Individual to 
ensure that the Personal Information, which he or she has provided to ADR 
Canada, is accurate and remains current. 


(c) ADR Canada does not routinely update Personal Information, unless such a 
process is necessary to fulfill the purposes for which the information was 
collected (for example, the periodic updates set out in (b) above). 


(d) Personal Information that is used continually, including information that is 
disclosed to third parties, is generally kept accurate and up-to-date, unless limits 
to the requirement for accuracy are clearly set out.   







- 13 - 


3.7 SAFEGUARDING PERSONAL INFORMATION 
 


Safeguards.  ADR Canada is committed to protecting the security of Personal Information.  
ADR Canada uses security safeguards appropriate to the sensitivity of Personal Information to 
protect it from loss or theft, as well as unauthorized access, disclosure, copying, use or 
modification.   


 


(a) ADR Canada has implemented security safeguards to protect Personal 
Information, regardless of the format in which it is held, against loss or theft, 
unauthorized access, collection, disclosure, copying, use, or modification, through 
safeguards which are appropriate to the sensitivity of the information that has 
been collected, the amount, distribution, and format of the information, and the 
method of storage.  A higher level of protection is used to safeguard more 
sensitive information.  


(b) The methods of protection used include: 


(i) physical measures, for example, locked filing cabinets and restricted 
access to offices; 


(ii) organizational measures, for example, limiting access on a “need-to-
know” basis; and 


(iii) technological measures, for example, the use of passwords and encryption. 


(c) ADR Canada protects Personal Information disclosed to non-ADR Canada third 
parties, by contractual agreements stipulating the confidentiality of the Personal 
Information and the purposes for which it may be used and disclosed.  


(d) ADR Canada’s staff is made aware, through orientation and refresher training 
programs, of the importance of maintaining the confidentiality of Personal 
Information.  ADR Canada conducts periodic internal and independent audits of 
its security safeguards and any breach of ADR Canada’s security safeguards is a 
disciplinary matter.  ADR Canada’s security safeguards extend to the destruction 
of Personal Information. 


(e) ADR Canada uses care in disposing of or destroying Personal Information to 
prevent unauthorized parties from gaining access to the information. 







- 14 - 


3.8   AVAILABILITY OF INFORMATION ABOUT ADR CANADA’S POLICIES AND 
PRACTICES 
 


Openness.  ADR Canada is open about the policies and practices it uses to manage Personal 
Information.  This privacy statement is intended to provide individuals with specific information 
about such policies and practices; however, ADR Canada will provide individuals with 
additional information upon request. 


 


 


(a) ADR Canada makes readily available to Individuals specific information about 
this Policy and other policies and practices relating to the management of 
Personal Information. 







- 15 - 


3.9 ACCESS TO PERSONAL INFORMATION 
 


Individual access.  Upon written request, ADR Canada will inform an Individual of the 
existence, use, and disclosure of his or her Personal Information, will provide such Individual 
with access to that information, and will permit the Individual to challenge the accuracy and 
completeness of the Personal Information. 


 


(a) ADR Canada shall, upon the written request of an Individual: 


(i) inform such Individual of the existence (including the source of the 
Personal Information), use, and disclosure (including a list of the 
organizations to which ADR Canada has, or may have, disclosed such 
Individual’s Personal Information) of his or her Personal Information, 
except as set out in (e) and (f) below; 


(ii) provide such Individual with access to that information except as set out in 
(e) and (f) below; and 


(iii) provide such Individual with a process to be able to express a concern 
regarding the accuracy and completeness of the Personal Information and 
where an Individual successfully demonstrates the inaccuracy or 
incompleteness of Personal Information, ADR Canada will amend the 
Personal Information as required as soon as reasonably possible.  Where 
reasonably appropriate, ADR Canada will transmit the amended 
information to third parties having access to the Personal Information in 
question.  


(b) ADR Canada will respond to each such Individual and Employee request not later 
than thirty (30) days after receipt of a written request.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, where: 


(i) a large amount of Personal Information is requested and meeting the time 
limit would unreasonably interfere with the activities of ADR Canada; or 


(ii) the time required to undertake any consultations necessary to respond to 
the request would make the time limit impracticable to meet; 


then ADR Canada shall within such thirty (30) day period send a notice to the 
Individual, advising them of the new time limit (which shall be no more than an 
additional thirty (30) day period, the reasons for extending the time limit and their 
right to make a complaint to the federal Privacy Commissioner or other applicable 
Privacy Law authority in respect of the extension.  Where ADR Canada extends 
the time limit for responding to a request by the maximum additional thirty (30) 
day period, ADR Canada may charge a minimal cost for such request in 
accordance with (c) below.   







- 16 - 


(c) ADR Canada will respond to each such request, under ordinary circumstances, at 
no cost to the Individual for access. 


(d) Where ADR Canada is making the requested information available, the 
information shall be in a form that is generally understandable, including 
explaining any abbreviations or codes. 


(e) Notwithstanding the foregoing, ADR Canada may not provide access to the 
Personal Information only if the information: 


(i) is protected by solicitor-client privilege; 


(ii) would reveal confidential information about ADR Canada; 


(iii) was collected without the knowledge and consent of the Individual (as to 
do otherwise would have compromised the availability or the accuracy of 
the Personal Information, and the collection was reasonable for purposes 
relating to investigating the breach of an agreement or a contravention of 
the laws of Canada or a province); or 


(iv) was generated in the course of a formal dispute resolution process, 
including without limitation such a process between (A) ADR Canada and 
(B) the Individual; provided that where the Personal Information requested 
by the Individual is needed because the life, health or security of an 
individual (who may or may not be the requesting Individual) is 
threatened, then ADR Canada will provide such Personal Information. 


(f) Under no circumstances shall ADR Canada provide access to the Personal 
Information if: 


(i) the information could reasonably be expected to threaten the safety or 
physical or mental health of an individual other than the individual who 
made the request; 


(ii) the information could reasonably be expected to cause immediate or grave 
harm to the safety or physical or mental health of the individual who made 
the request; or 


(iii) the information would reveal the identity of an individual who has 
provided Personal Information about another individual and the individual 
providing the Personal Information does not consent to the disclosure of 
his or her identity. 1 


                                                 
1 For example, if an ADR Canada board member provides an opinion on an individual’s application for certification 


as an arbitrator or mediator that an individual is not fit to be certified, and disclosing this opinion would reveal 
the identity of the member who does not consent to such disclosure, ADR Canada may not disclose such 
information.  







- 17 - 


(g) Notwithstanding (e) and (f) above, if ADR Canada is able to remove the 
information listed in (e)(ii) and (f)(i), (ii) and (iii) from a document that contains 
Personal Information about the individual who requested it, ADR Canada must 
provide the individual with access to the Personal Information after the 
information referred to above is removed. 


(h) Where access to the Personal Information would likely reveal Personal 
Information about a third party: 


(i) ADR Canada shall not provide access to such Personal Information, 
provided that if the Personal Information of the third party is severable 
from the Personal Information of the requesting Individual, ADR Canada 
shall sever such third party Personal Information and shall provide the 
requesting Individual with their remaining Personal Information; but 


(ii) notwithstanding (h)(i) above, ADR Canada shall provide such access, and 
need not sever third party Personal Information, where such third party 
consents or where the Personal Information requested by the Individual is 
needed by the Individual because the life, health or security of an 
individual (who may or may not be the requesting Individual) is 
threatened. 


(i) In addition, in the case of sensitive medical information, ADR Canada may refer 
the Individual to the Individual’s physician to disclose such Personal Information 
to the Individual. 


(j) Where ADR Canada refuses a request from an Individual under this Section of the 
Policy within the thirty (30) day response period, ADR Canada will identify (i) 
the reasons for refusing the request, (ii) the recourse for the Individual under the 
Act generally, and (iii) the contact information of the Privacy Officer who can 
answer any questions about the refusal to provide access to the information, as set 
out in Schedule “A”. 


(k) If an Individual makes a written request to ADR Canada to inform him or her 
about any disclosure of their Personal Information to a government institution, the 
Privacy Officer shall be informed, and ADR Canada shall not respond to such 
request until the Privacy Officer has determined whether ADR Canada must 
notify the government institution and otherwise comply with the procedures set 
out in Sections 9(2.1) to 9(2.4) of the Act. 







- 18 - 


3.10 HANDLING COMPLAINTS AND QUESTIONS 
 


Complaints And Questions.  An individual may challenge ADR Canada’s compliance with this 
privacy statement.  All complaints or inquiries should be in writing, include the individual’s 
name, contact information and a brief description of the complaint, and be directed to ADR 
Canada’s Privacy Officer.  


Prior to making a complaint to the Chief Privacy Officer, or if a complaint is not resolved to the 
individual’s satisfaction, the individual may also make a complaint to the applicable Privacy 
Commissioner. 


 


 


(a) An Individual can submit a complaint in writing to the Privacy Officer concerning 
ADR Canada’s compliance with the above principles. 


(b) ADR Canada has put procedures in place to receive and respond to inquiries or 
concerns/complaints about its policies and practices relating to the handling of 
Personal Information. ADR Canada informs Individuals who make inquiries or 
lodge concerns/complaints of the existence of relevant complaint procedures.    


(c) ADR Canada investigates all concerns/complaints pursuant to its complaint 
procedures.  If it concludes that a complaint is justified, ADR Canada will take 
appropriate measures, including, if necessary, amending its policies and practices. 
ADR Canada will inform each Individual of the outcome of the investigation 
regarding his or her challenge/complaint. 


(d) When a concern /complaint is not resolved to the satisfaction of the Individual, 
ADR Canada records the substance of the unresolved concern/complaint, and 
where appropriate transmits the existence of the unresolved concern/complaint to 
third parties having access to the Personal Information in question. 


 


 


 







- 19 - 


SCHEDULE “A” 


PRIVACY OFFICER 
 
Mary Anne Harnick 
Suite 500  
234 Eglinton Avenue East, 
Toronto, Ontario 
M4P 1K5 
 
Tel: 1-877-475-4353 
Tel: 1-416-487-4733 
Fax: 1-416-487-4429 
 


 







- 20 - 


 


SCHEDULE “B” 
 


EXAMPLES OF EXCEPTIONS TO CONSENT REQUIREMENT 
FOR COLLECTION, USE AND DISCLOSURE 


The following is a representative sampling of circumstances under which ADR Canada may, 
without knowledge or Consent,:   


(i) collect Personal Information: 


(A) where the collection is clearly in the interests of the Individual and 
Consent cannot be obtained in a timely way; or 


(B) where it would be reasonable to expect that the collection with the 
knowledge and consent of the individual would compromise the 
availability or the accuracy of the information and the collection is 
reasonable for purposes related to investigating a breach of an 
agreement or a contravention of the laws of Canada or a province. 


(ii) use Personal Information: 


(A) where the information was collected in accordance with paragraphs 
(i)(A) or (B); 


(B) where ADR Canada becomes aware of information it has 
reasonable grounds to believe could be useful in investigating or 
preventing a contravention of the laws of Canada, a province, or 
another country, that has been, is being, or is about to be 
committed, the use with consent would compromise the 
investigation and the information is used to investigate that 
contravention; or 


(C) where the information is used to act in an emergency that threatens 
the life, health or security of an Individual; and  


(iii) disclose Personal Information: 


(A) where the disclosure is made to a barrister or solicitor who is 
representing ADR Canada; 


(B) where required to comply with a subpoena or warrant issued or an 
order made by a body with jurisdiction to compel the production of 
information, or to comply with court rulings relating to the 
production of records.   







- 21 - 


(C) where made to a government institution or part of a government 
institution that has requested the information, identified its lawful 
authority to obtain the information, and indicated that 


(I) to the extent the Act applies, it suspects that the 
information relates to national security, the defense of 
Canada, or the conduct of international affairs, 


(II) the disclosure is requested for the purpose of enforcing any 
law of Canada, a province or, to the extent the Act applies, 
another country, carrying out an investigation relating to 
the enforcement of any such law, or gathering intelligence 
for the purpose of enforcing any such law, or 


(III) the disclosure is requested for the purpose of administering 
any law of Canada or a Canadian province. 


(D) where made on the initiative of ADR Canada to an investigative 
body, a government institution, or a part of a government 
institution, and ADR Canada has reasonable grounds to believe 
that the information relates to a breach of an agreement or a 
contravention of the laws of Canada, a province or, to the extent 
the Act applies, another country, that has been, is being or is about 
to be committed;  


(E) where made to a person who needs the information because of an 
emergency that threatens the life, health, or security of an 
Individual and, if the Individual whom the information is about is 
alive, ADR Canada informs that Individual of the Disclosure in 
writing without delay; or 


(F) where law requires the disclosure. 


This is not an exhaustive list of such circumstances, and there may be other circumstances where 
ADR Canada is permitted by law, without knowledge and consent, to collect, use or disclose 
Personal Information. 







- 22 - 


 


SCHEDULE “C” 


PUBLICLY AVAILABLE INFORMATION EXCEPTIONS  


This Policy does not impose limits on the collection, use or disclosure by ADR Canada of the 
following publicly available information. 


Personal Information that is an individual’s name, address, telephone number and e-mail address, 
when (i) listed in a public directory (where the Individual can refuse to have the Personal 
Information appear in the directory); (ii) available in a publication, in printed or electronic form, 
that is available to the public; or (iii) where the individual has provided the information 
appearing in: 


(A) a professional or business directory, listing or notice; 


(B) a registry collected under a statutory authority and to which a right of public 
access is authorized by law; or 


(C) a record or document of a judicial or quasi-judicial body, 


in which case the collection, use and disclosure of the Personal Information must relate directly 
to the purpose for which the information appears in, as applicable, the directory, listing or notice; 
the registry; or the record or document. 








ADR CANADA
PRIVACY POLICIES AND PRACTICES OVERVIEW


DM_TOR/900031-00086/2085337.3


ADR INSTITUTE OF CANADA 


PRIVACY POLICY OVERVIEW
Enacted 2007


PRIVACY STATEMENT


The ADR Institute of Canada (“ADR Canada”) is a non-profit organization committed to providing leadership in 
the development and promotion of dispute resolution services in Canada. This privacy statement describes ADR 
Canada’s commitment to the privacy of its members, clients and customers. 


I. PURPOSE


It is consistent with the core values of ADR Canada, and thus constitutes the policy of ADR Canada, to protect the 
personal information of its employees, clients, customers and members and other individuals whose personal 
information it handles (collectively, “Individuals”).  ADR Canada recognizes that effective systems and measures 
to protect such personal information are important to safeguarding the interests of Individuals who share their 
information with ADR Canada.  The purpose of this privacy policy (the “Policy”) is to establish common rules to 
govern the collection, use and disclosure of personal information by ADR Canada, in a manner that balances an 
Individual’s right to privacy with the need of ADR Canada to collect, use or disclose personal information for 
purposes that a reasonable person would consider appropriate in the circumstances, in accordance with applicable 
privacy laws (“Privacy Laws”).


In this Policy, ADR Canada includes the National office and six regional affiliates engaged in the development, 
promotion and administration of dispute resolution services in Canada, the provision of information and skill 
building tools and services for practitioners and users of ADR services, development and implementation of national 
standards, a code of ethics and complaint procedures for ADR professionals, training and trainers, national 
accreditation for mediator and arbitrators, course approval and training and special benefits to members. 


If you have any questions about this privacy statement, or ADR Canada’s policies and practices, please contact ADR 
Canada at:


ADR Institute of Canada, Inc. 
Suite 500 
234 Eglinton Avenue East,
Toronto, Ontario
M4P 1K5


Attention:  Mary Anne Harnick, Chief Privacy Officer


Toll Free Tel: 1-877-475-4353
Tel: 1-416-487-4733
Fax: 1-416-487-4429
Email: privacy@adrcanada.ca, or


admin@adrcanada.ca


Privacy law is a new and rapidly evolving area.  This privacy statement is subject to periodic review to maintain its 
accuracy and compliance with applicable law.  Any updates to this privacy statement will be posted on this Web 
site.







-2-


DM_TOR/900031-00086/2085337.3


ADR CANADA’S ’S COMMITMENT TO PRIVACY


Commitment #1:  Accountability


ADR Canada is responsible for all personal information in its possession or control, including any personal 
information transferred to third parties for processing.  ADR Canada has established policies and practices to give 
effect to this privacy statement and has designated a Chief Privacy Officer, whose contact information is set out 
above, to be accountable within the organization for ADR Canada’s compliance with this privacy statement and the 
applicable privacy laws.


Commitment #2:  Identifying Purposes for Collecting Personal Information


ADR Canada will identify to an individual the purposes for which it collects, uses and communicates or discloses 
personal information (the “Purposes”), before or at the time the information is collected, or where the information is 
to be used or communicated or disclosed for a new purpose, before that use or communication or disclosure.  The 
Purposes will generally include:


(a) determining and documenting an applicant’s eligibility for accreditation (chartering);
(b) understanding, administering, selling products and services that meet member, client or customer ADR 


needs;
(c) processing any payments made by clients for ADR Canada products and services; collecting any amounts 


owing by members or clients under any goods or services transactions; and investigating, pursuing and 
adjudicating any collections and/or damages claims relating to members, clients or customers;


(d) communicating with members, clients or customers in connection with the foregoing purposes; 
(e) offering members, clients and customers new products and services that may be of interest to them 


(provided that members and clients have not opted out of receiving such offers); and
(f) investigating complaints about members.


Commitment #3:  Obtaining Consent


ADR Canada will make a reasonable effort to advise an individual as to how personal information will be used or 
communicated or disclosed by ADR Canada.  Generally, ADR Canada will obtain an individual’s consent to the 
collection, use and communication or disclosure of personal information for the Purposes before or at the time it 
collects the information.  A member, client or customer’s consent may be express or implied, depending on the 
sensitivity of the information.  


Commitment #4:  Limits on the Collection of Personal Information


ADR Canada limits the collection of personal information to that which is necessary for the Purposes it has 
identified.  ADR Canada will only collect personal information by fair and lawful means.  ADR Canada will not 
collect personal information from any third party without an individual’s consent unless the collection is clearly in 
the individual’s interest and ADR Canada is unable to obtain consent in a timely way, or as otherwise permitted by 
law.


Commitment #5:  Limits on the Use, Communication or Disclosure and Retention of Personal Information


ADR Canada will only use, communicate or disclose and retain personal information for the Purposes identified in 
its policy.  ADR Canada will identify any third parties to whom personal information will be communicated or 
disclosed at the time of collection and obtain an individual’s consent to such communication or disclosure.  


ADR Canada will keep a record of an individual’s personal information in a file specific to him or her.  ADR 
Canada will use, communicate or disclose and retain personal information only for as long as is necessary to fulfil 
the Purposes of its policy or as otherwise permitted or required by law.  ADR Canada has established minimum and 
maximum retention periods and procedures for retaining and destroying personal information.







-3-


DM_TOR/900031-00086/2085337.3


Commitment #6:  Accuracy of Personal Information


ADR Canada will use reasonable efforts to keep personal information as accurate, complete and up-to-date as 
necessary for the purposes of its privacy policy.  ADR Canada will not routinely update personal information unless 
necessary.  ADR Canada expects individuals from time to time, to update their personal information themselves, 
using the “Update Your Listing” feature of this Web site.


Commitment #7:  Safeguarding Personal Information


ADR Canada is committed to protecting the security of personal information.  ADR Canada uses security safeguards 
appropriate to the sensitivity of personal information to protect it from loss or theft, as well as unauthorized access, 
disclosure, copying, use or modification.  


ADR Canada’s staff is made aware, through orientation and refresher training programs, of the importance of 
maintaining the confidentiality of personal information. ADR Canada conducts periodic internal and independent 
audits of its security safeguards and any breach of ADR Canada’s security safeguards is a disciplinary matter.  ADR 
Canada’s security safeguards extend to the destruction of personal information.


Commitment #8:  Availability of Information about ADR Canada’s Policies and Practices  (Openness)


ADR Canada is open about the policies and practices it uses to manage personal information.  This privacy 
statement is intended to provide individuals with specific information about such policies and practices; however, 
ADR Canada will provide an individuals with additional information upon request.


Commitment #9:  Access to Personal Information


Upon written request, ADR Canada will inform an Individual of the existence, use, and disclosure of his or her 
Personal Information, will provide such Individual with access to that information, and will permit the Individual to 
challenge the accuracy and completeness of the Personal Information.


Commitment #10:  Handling Complaints and Questions


An individual may challenge ADR Canada’s compliance with this privacy statement.  All complaints or inquiries 
should be in writing, include the member, client or customer’s name, contact information and a brief description of 
the complaint, and be directed to ADR Canada’s Chief Privacy Officer using the contact information above.  


Prior to making a complaint to the Chief Privacy Officer, or if a complaint is not resolved to the individual’s 
satisfaction, the individual may also make a complaint to the applicable Privacy Commissioner.








 


ADRIA draft complaints policy Sept. 7, 2013  Page 1 of 8 
 


5.1 


ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA) 
Complaints and Dispute Resolution Policy and Processes  


DRAFT JUNE 17, 2013  
 


Purpose: 
 
The purpose of this policy is to address disputes and complaints that may arise, and 
to address complaints received by ADRIA openly, honestly, thoroughly and 
transparently concerning: 
 Operational activities:  programs, policies, services, ADRIA staff, contractors or 


volunteers; and  
 Board policies and governance of the Society.  
 


Guiding Principles 
  
 Collaboration:  The skills and resources of ADRIA will be used to address 


complaints and resolve disputes in a manner that is consistent with an interest-
based, collaborative approach.  


 Timeliness:  Complaints will be dealt with promptly and resolved as quickly as 
possible.  


 Fairness: Review of complaints will be fair, impartial and respectful to all parties 
and allowing all parties to have their perspectives heard.  


 Thoroughness:  Review of complaints will be thorough and as detailed as 
possible, based upon the information provided by the complainant and 
respondent. 


 Accessible and User Friendly:  The process will be easily accessible and 
communicated to members.  It is designed to be clear and as simple to follow as 
possible. 


 Transparency: Complainants will be provided clear and understandable reasons 
for decisions relating to complaints. Complainants will be provided with updates 
during review processes.   


 Confidentiality:  Information about a complaint will only be given to people 
directly involved and to others on a need to know basis. All involved will be 
advised of the need for confidentiality.  


 


Types of Complaints Covered in this Policy 
 
Definitions:  
 
A complainant is the individual or entity lodging a complaint against another 
individual or entity within ADRIA’s jurisdiction. 
A complaint is an expression of dissatisfaction about the service, actions, or lack of 
action by ADRIA as an organization or about a staff member, Institute member, 
contractor or volunteer acting on behalf of ADRIA.  







 


ADRIA draft complaints policy Sept. 7, 2013  Page 2 of 8 
 


 
A dispute is a disagreement between parties about the occurrence of events, the 
correctness of facts, the quality of products or services delivered, recompense for 
products or services delivered, and personal or professional conduct of one or more 
parties.   
 
An Ombudsperson is an individual who has been appointed by the Board to act as an 
intermediary in complaint processes and to work with disputing parties and the 
Board of Directors to resolve complaints. The Board may appoint a roster of 
Ombudspersons, the appointments of which may be from the Board, the staff, or the 
general membership based on experience, personal reputation and neutrality.  
 
A policy is any policy that has been approved by the ADRIA Board of Directors. 
 
A respondent is the individual or entity against whom a complaint has been made.  
 
 
This policy deals with complaints by: 


 ADRIA members 
  partners, affiliates or clients 
 ADRIA staff, instructors, coaches or students 
  the general public. 


 
This policy deals with: 


 Complaints between ADRIA members 
 Complaints about ADRIA members 
 Complaints about ADRIA Board members 
 Complaints about ADRIA staff members or the Executive Director 
 ADRIA member competency or ethical breaches 
 Complaints about ADRIA instructors or coaches 
 Complaints about the ADRIA Educational or Professional Development 


programs 
 Disputes relating to contracts with private service providers 
 Internal ADRIA human resources matters that are addressed under Bylaw 


8.4 (see attachment 1) 
 
 
Responsibility for Implementation 
 
This policy respects the accountability framework of ADRIA which provides that: 


 operational matters are the  responsibility of the Executive Director and 
 matters relating to Board policy, Board activities\decisions and ADRIA  


governance are the responsibility of the Board of Directors. 
 
 


Complaints Procedures 







 


ADRIA draft complaints policy Sept. 7, 2013  Page 3 of 8 
 


 
 
Preliminary Procedure 
The first person a complainant should talk to is the person with whom he or she has 
the conflict. The complainant should also contact any person who is most familiar 
with the matter of concern.  
 
If the claimant is unable to resolve the matter with the respondent and is unsure 
about who to talk to, he or she is  encouraged to consult with the ADRIA Executive 
Director.  If the Executive Director is not the right person, he or she will support the 
complainant in redirecting the concern to the appropriate person. 
 
 
Subject\Type of Dispute/ Complaint First Contact  
Complaints regarding ADRIA services, programs, 
activities, operations, contractors or volunteers 


ADRIA Staff – a person who is involved in the 
service area relating to the complaint and, if 
necessary, the Executive Director  


Complaints regarding ADRIA staff members Executive Director 
Disputes between staff members Executive Director 
Complaints regarding ethics, conduct or 
professionalism of an ADRIA member 


Executive Director 


Complaints concerning the Executive Director Board Officers – Vice-President 
Complaints regarding Board Policies, Board 
actions/decisions and governance of the Society 
 


Board Officers –President, Vice-President, 
Treasurer or Secretary  


Matters related to Board/staff relations Board Officers - Vice-President  
Complaints concerning a Board Member Board Officers – Vice-President or President  
 


 
Complaints about operational practices pertaining to Education, such as course 
materials, teaching schedules, class quality, certificate requirements, concerns with 
instructors or coaches, fees, etc. will be initially dealt with by the Manager, 
Professional Development. 
 
Complaints about operational practices pertaining to Membership, such as 
designations, membership fees, processing issues, refunds, the Directory, website 
problems, etc. will initially be dealt with by the Director, Member Services. 
 
Day to day operational matters may be escalated to the Executive Director, who will 
meet with all parties, including the Manager, Professional Development and/or the 
Director, Member Services.  The complaints procedures will still be followed; but the 
decision of the Executive Director in these matters is final.  
 
 
Step 1: Informal Discussion  
 







 


ADRIA draft complaints policy Sept. 7, 2013  Page 4 of 8 
 


A complainant will first contact the appropriate ADRIA representative to discuss the 
concern.  At this step facilitated dialogue and negotiation between the disputing 
parties is encouraged. An Ombudsperson will be appointed at the early stages of a 
complaint to assist the complainant in clarifying the concern and seeking possible 
remedies. The Ombudsperson may request some details from both parties in 
writing; however this does not constitute a written complaint at this point. 
 
 
Every attempt will be made to resolve the matter in less than two (2) weeks from 
the date the concern was raised with the ADRIA representative. 
 
 
Step 2:  Written Complaint  
 
If the informal discussion does not resolve the matter to the satisfaction of the 
complainant, the complainant will be asked to present the complaint in writing to: 


 the ADRIA Executive Director for all operational matters, or  
 the Vice President  for Board policy /governance matters or  matters 


involving board/staff relations and performance/actions of the Executive 
Director or complaints against a Board member 


 
Complaints received in writing will be acknowledged within two-three (2-3) 
business days.  While further discussion to resolve the complaint may still occur in 
an attempt to find a mutually agreeable solution, the following will apply: 
 


 Where the complaint is filed with ADRIA staff or the Executive Director, a 
written response from the Executive Director(s) will normally be received by 
the complainant, with a copy to the respondent, within two (2) weeks.  
 
If, within two (2) weeks of receiving the response, the complainant advises 
the Executive Director in writing that the response does not resolve the 
matter, it shall be referred by the Executive Director in writing,to an ADRIA 
appointed Ombudsperson. (Step 3) 
 
Where the complaint is filed with the Board, a written response from the 
Vice-President will normally be received by the complainant, with a copy to 
the respondent, within two (2) weeks.  
 
If, within two (2) weeks of receiving the response, the complainant advises 
the Board through the Vice-President in writing that the response does not 
resolve the matter, it shall be referred by the Vice-President in writing, to an 
ADRIA appointed Ombudsperson. (Step 3) 
 
Depending upon the nature of the complaint, the Ombudsperson appointed 
by the Executive Director or the Board may or may not be the same 
individual originally assigned to help the complainant during the initial 
stages. 







 


ADRIA draft complaints policy Sept. 7, 2013  Page 5 of 8 
 


 
 
Resolution Procedure 
 
The Ombudsperson shall attempt to resolve all issues using various tools at 
his or her disposal and in a manner deemed most appropriate by the 
Ombudsperson in consultation with the parties.  
 
Any dispute that is not resolved through an ADRIA Ombudsperson may be 
appealed to the Board of Directors. The Board may wish to determine the 
matter at the next full meeting of the Board or refer the issue to the Board 
Review Panel. (Step 4) 
 


If a matter falls under the dispute resolution provisions of the ADRIA bylaws (see 
attachment 1) the matter may be referred to Mediation and\or Arbitration.   
 
 
Step 3: Ombudsperson 


 
Upon receipt of a referral or a written complaint from either the Executive Director 
or the Board, the Ombudsperson will contact the parties to commence an attempt to 
resolve the issue(s).  The Ombudsperson will determine if the matter is appropriate 
for mediation and will use a non-evaluative mediation approach. All parties are 
encouraged to work with the Ombudsperson.    


 
a. If the complaint is not resolved by efforts of the Ombudsperson, the 


Ombudsperson may refer the matter to the ADRIA Board for review and 
determination.  


b. If the complaint is resolved by the efforts of the Ombudsperson, the 
Ombudsperson will send a confirmation letter to the parties and write a report 
of the complaint, documenting the parties, the issue, steps taken and the 
resolution. What actually happened or what was discussed during this process 
will be confidential and not part of the report. The report will be submitted to 
the ADRIA Board and/or the Executive Director, as appropriate.  


 
If the complaint is resolved, the Ombudsperson will send a confirmation letter to the 
parties and notify the Executive Director or Board of Directors (depending on the 
source of the referral) of the matter’s conclusion. 


 
The Ombudsperson will make every effort to complete this work within sixty (60) 
days from the date of receipt of the written complaint. 
 
 
Step 4: Board Review Panel 
 
Where a matter need be referred to a Board Review Panel, a three-member panel 
shall be appointed by the ADRIA Board of Directors. The panel shall consist of at 







 


ADRIA draft complaints policy Sept. 7, 2013  Page 6 of 8 
 


least two members of the Board, with the third panel member being the Executive 
Director, an ADRIA staff person or an ADRIA member at large.  
 
Upon occasion, and depending upon the severity of the complaint, the Board may 
appoint a subject matter expert or professional from outside ADRIA as the third 
panel member.  
 
 The Review Panel will contact the complainant and the respondent within five (5) 
working days of being struck and will hold a meeting to be attended by the parties 
within thirty (30) days.   
 
During this meeting the parties will have an opportunity to provide their views on 
the matter.   A written decision of the panel shall be provided to the parties within 
two (2) weeks of the meeting date. There is no appeal. 
 
 
Step 5: Board Determination 
 
Where a matter is referred by the Ombudsperson to the ADRIA Board of Directors, 
the Board may choose to determine the matter at a whole Board meeting or refer it 
to an ADRIA Board Review Panel (Step 4). If the Board determines it will deal with 
the matter, a written acknowledgement will normally be received by the 
complainant and respondent one (1) week after the next scheduled ADRIA Board 
meeting.  
 
The Board acknowledgement will inform the parties of the process the Board 
chooses to use in resolving the matter, what additional information the Board 
requires, and whether the Board wishes the parties to appear at a Board or Review 
Panel meeting.  
 
Whether the Board determines the matter as a whole, or whether it accepts the 
recommendation of the Review Panel, the written response of the Board will 
provide a final, non-appealable decision on the matter within a week it its 
determination. 
 
 
Documenting Complaints 
  
A record will be kept of any written complaint under this process. Information about 
such complaints will include the parties involved, a description of the complaint, 
who handled it, what was done to resolve the complaint, the timeframe, and a 
description of the resolution or an explanation for non-resolution. These records 
will be kept in a confidential file. 
 
A summary of complaints, including total number of complaints and the type of 
complaints received, will be prepared by the Executive Director and reported to the 
Board of Directors annually. 







 


ADRIA draft complaints policy Sept. 7, 2013  Page 7 of 8 
 


 
Day to day operational matters may be escalated to the Executive Director, who will 
meet with all parties, including the Manager, Professional Development and/or the 
Director, Member Services.  The complaints procedures will still be followed; but the 
decision of the Executive Director in these matters is final.  
 
Matters Not Appealable 
 


- ADRIA Bylaws 
- 1Previously Reviewed Complaints 
- Operational Matters (after due process & determination by the Executive 


Director) 
- Issues within the jurisdiction of the ADR Institute of Canada (ADRIC) 
- Matters of law.  


 
 


                                                        
1  







 


ADRIA draft complaints policy Sept. 7, 2013  Page 8 of 8 
 


 
 
Attachment 1: Bylaw Provisions 


8.4  DISPUTE RESOLUTION 


1.   This Section applies to any dispute arising out of the Society's affairs and 
between members, or between the Society or its Director or its Officer and 
either,  


 


a. a member or a person who is aggrieved and who has for not more than 6 
months ceased to be a member; or  
 


b.  a person claiming through the member or aggrieved person or claiming 
under the Bylaws,  


 
2.   Any dispute subject to Subsection 1 will be resolved by:  
 


a.  Direct negotiation between the affected parties. If resolution is not achieved, 
then by the provisions of the Complaints and Dispute Resolution and Process 
Policy by  
 


b.  Mediation pursuant to the National Mediation Rules of ADRIC. The place of 
mediation will be in Alberta. The language of the mediation will be English. If 
resolution is not achieved, then by  
 


c.  Arbitration pursuant to the Simplified Arbitration Rules of ADRIC. The place of 
arbitration will be in Alberta. The language of the arbitration will be English, 
and the decision will bind all parties.   


 
 





